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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Century Textiles and Industries Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial
statements of Century Textiles and Industries Limited
(hereinafter referred to as "the Holding Company"), its
subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
together referred to as "the Group") and its joint venture
comprising of the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March
31 2023, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss,
including other comprehensive income, the consolidated
Cash Flow Statement and the consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as "the consolidated
financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the
Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs
of the Group and its joint venture as at March 31, 2023,
their consolidated profit including other comprehensive
income, their consolidated cash flows and the consolidated
statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act.
Our responsibilities under those Standards are further

described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements’ section of our
report. We are independent of the Group and joint venture
in accordance with the '‘Code of Ethics' issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial
statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements for the financial year
ended March 31, 2023. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be
the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in
relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements. The results of audit
procedures performed by us, including those procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis
for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.

Key audit matters

‘ How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Recognition and Measurement of Deferred Tax (as described in Note 16 of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements)

The Group has recognized Minimum Alternate Tax | Our procedures included, amongst others, the following:

(MAT) credit receivable of INR 397.22 crore as at|.  considered Group's accounting policies with respect to recognition

March 31, 2023. The Group also has recognized
deferred tax assets of INR 113.41 crore on
unabsorbed loss and indexation benefit on land.

and measurement of tax balances in accordance with Ind AS 12
“Income Taxes".

Performed and understanding of the process and tested the internal
controls over recognition and measurement of tax balances
through inspection of evidence of performance of these controls.
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Further, pursuant to the Taxation Laws (Amendment)
Act, 2019 (new tax regime), the Group has measured
its deferred tax balances expected to reverse after
the likely transition to new tax regime, at the rate
specified in the new tax regime.

The recognition and measurement of MAT credit
receivable and deferred tax balances is a key audit
matter as the recoverability of such credits within the
allowed time frame in the manner prescribed under
tax regulations and estimation of year of transition
to the new tax regime involves significant estimate
of the financial projections, availability of sufficient
taxable income in the future and admissibility of tax
positions adopted by the Group.

Performed the tests of details including the following key
procedures:

Involved tax specialists who evaluated the Group's tax positions
basis the tax law and also by comparing it with prior years and past
precedents.

Discussed the future business plans and financial projections as
approved by the management.

Assessed the management's long-term financial projections and
the key assumptions used in the projections by comparing it with
the past trends, approved business plan, projections used for
estimation of likely year of transition to the new tax regime and
projections used for impairment assessment, where applicable.

Assessed the deferred tax on temporary differences which are
expected to reverse after the likely date of transition to the new tax
regime and considered the impact thereof.

Assessed the disclosures in accordance with the requirements of Ind
AS 12 "Income Taxes".

Assessing the carrying value of Real estate inventorie

s (as described in Note 9 of the consolidated financial statement)

As at March 31, 2023, the carrying value of the
inventory of ongoing real estate projects is Rs.
2,486.87 Crore. The inventories are held at the lower
of the cost and net realisable value.

The cost of the inventory is calculated using
actual land acquisition costs, construction costs,
development related costs and interest capitalised
for eligible projects.

We identified the assessment of whether carrying
value of inventory were stated at the lower of cost

and net realisable value ("NRV") as a key audit|

matter due to the significance of the balance to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole and
the involvement of estimations in the assessment.
The determination of the NRV involves estimates
based on prevailing market conditions and taking
into account the estimated future selling price, cost
to complete projects and selling costs.

Our audit procedures included considering the Company's accounting
policies with respect to valuation of inventories in accordance with Ind
AS 2 "Inventories".

We assessed the Company's methodology based on current economic
and market conditions, applied in assessing the carrying value of
Inventory balance. We performed test of controls over process of
valuation of inventory and authorization for inventory write down

We performed the following test of details:

Assessed the methods used by the management, in determining
the NRV of ongoing real estate projects.

Obtained, read and assessed the management's process in
estimating the future costs to completion for inventory of ongoing
projects.

Discussed with management the life cycle of the project, key project

risks, changes to project strategy, current and future estimated
sales prices, construction progress and impairment.

Compared the NRV to recent sales in the project or to the estimated
selling price in the nearby properties.

Other Information

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible
for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Annual report, but does
not include the consolidated financial statements and our

auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any

form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible
for the preparation and presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act
that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position, consolidated financial performance including
other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and
consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group
including its joint venture in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133
of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective
Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group
and of its joint venture are responsible for maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of their
respective companies and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the
Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
respective Board of Directors of the companies included
in the Group and of its joint venture are responsible for
assessing the ability of their respective company to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.Those respective Board
of Directors of the companies included in the Group and
of its joint venture are also responsible for overseeing the
financial reporting process of their respective company.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
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butis not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional  judgment and maintain  professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
oneresulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriatein the circumstances. Under section 143(3)
(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Holding Company has
adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude ontheappropriateness of management's use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group
and its joint venture to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group and its joint venture to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group and its joint venture of
which we are the independent auditors and whose
financial information we have audited, to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audit of the financial statements
of such entities included in the consolidated financial
statements of which we are the independent auditors.
For the other entities included in the consolidated
financial statements, which have been audited by
other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of
the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of
the Holding Company and such other entities included in
the consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs
3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,
2020 (the "Order"/ “"CARQ") issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act,
to be included in the Auditor's report, according to
the information and explanations given to us, and
based on the CARO reports issued by us for the
Company, its subsidiaries and joint venture included
in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the
Company, to which reporting under CARO is applicable,
we report as under:

Qualifications or adverse remarks by us in the
Companies (Auditors Report) Order (CARO) reports of
the companies included in the consolidated financial
statements are:

Sr. | Name CIN Holding company | Clause number of the

No / subsidiary / joint | CARO report which is
venture qualified or is adverse

1 | Century Textiles and Industries Limited L17120MH1897PLC000163 | Holding Company | 3(i)(c)

2 | Birla Estates Private Limited U70700MH2017PTC303291 | Subsidiary 3(xvii)

3 | Birla Century Exports Private Limited U51909MH2018PTC317024 | Subsidiary 3(xvii)

4 | Birla Advanced Knits Private Limited U17299GJ2021PTC124095 | Joint venture 3(xvii)

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

(b) Inouropinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company, so far it appears from our
examination of those books, except that in few cases, back up of books of accounts maintained in electronic mode
were taken on the next day (instead on a daily basis) as stated in Note 48;

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the

consolidated financial statements;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

Leading with purpose, growing with responsibility.
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On the basis of the written representations
received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on March 31, 2023 taken on record
by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company
and the reports of the statutory auditors who are
appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its
subsidiary companies and joint venture, none of
the directors of the Group's companies and its
joint venture, incorporated in India, is disqualified
as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

The qualification relating to the maintenance of
accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in paragraph (b) above.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of the Holding Company,
its subsidiary companies and its joint venture,
incorporated in India, and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in "Annexure 1" to this report;

In our opinion and based on the consideration of
reports of statutory auditors of the subsidiaries,
and joint venture incorporated in India, the
managerial remuneration for the year ended
March 31, 2023 has been paid / provided by
the Holding Company, its subsidiaries and joint
venture incorporated in India to their directors in
accordance with the provisions of section 197
read with Schedule V to the Act;

With respect to the other matters to be included
in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. The consolidated financial statements
disclose the impact of pending litigations
on its consolidated financial position of the
Group and joint ventures in its consolidated
financial statements — Refer Note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements;

ii.  Provision hasbeen madeinthe consolidated
financial statements, as required under the
applicable law or accounting standards,
for material foreseeable losses, if any, on
long-term contracts including derivative
contracts — Refer (a) Note 43 to the
consolidated financial statements in respect
of such items as it relates to the Group and
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joint ventures and (b) the Group's share of
net profit in respect of its joint ventures;

There has been no delay in transferring
amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Holding Company, its subsidiaries and
joint ventures, incorporated in India during
the year ended March 31, 2023.

a) The respective managements
of the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries and joint ventures which
are companies incorporated in India
whose financial statements have been
audited under the Act have represented
to us, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Holding Company or any of such
subsidiaries and joint ventures to or in
any other persons or entities, including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly
or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the respective Holding Company or any
of such subsidiaries and joint ventures
("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The respective managements
of the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries and joint ventures which
are companies incorporated in India
whose financial statements have been
audited under the Act have represented
to us, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been received by
the respective Holding Company or any
of such subsidiaries and joint ventures
from any persons or entities, including
foreign entities ("Funding Parties"),
with  the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Holding Company or any of such
subsidiaries and joint ventures shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend
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or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party
("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
and

c) Based on the audit procedures that
have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances
performed by us, nothing has come
to our or other auditor's notice that
has caused us or the other auditors to
believe that the representations under
sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any
material misstatement.

v. The final dividend paid by the Holding
Company, its subsidiaries and joint venture
companies incorporated in India during the
year in respect of the same declared for the
previous year is in accordance with section
123 of the Act to the extent it applies to
payment of dividend. As stated in note 13 to
the consolidated financial statements, the
Board of Directors of the Holding Company
have proposed final dividend for the year
which is subject to the approval of the
members of the respective companies at the
respective ensuing Annual General Meeting.
The dividend declared is in accordance with
section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies
to declaration of dividend.

vi. As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable only
w.e.f. April 1, 2023 for the Holding Company,
its subsidiaries and joint venture companies
incorporated in India, hence reporting under
this clause is not applicable.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Ravi Bansal

Partner

Place of Signature: Mumbai Membership Number: 049365
Date: April 24, 2023 UDIN: 23049365BGWUAX6952

Annexure 1 to the Independent Auditor's Report of even
date on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of
Century Textiles and Industries Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i)
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act")

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements of Century Textiles and Industries
Limited (hereinafter referred to as the "Holding Company")
as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023, we have
audited the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and
its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) and its
joint venture, which are companies incorporated in India, as
of that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial
Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included
in the Group and joint venture, which are companies
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Holding Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the "Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (the "ICAI"). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to the respective
company's policies, the safequarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding
Company's internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated Ind AS financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, specified
under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both, issued by the
ICAIl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether

Leading with purpose, growing with responsibility.
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adequate internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated Ind AS financial statements was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial
statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
Ind AS financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference
to consolidated Ind AS financial statements, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to
consolidated Ind AS financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of consolidated Ind AS financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control with
reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of consolidated Ind AS financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of
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management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With
Reference to Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion orimproper
management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind
AS financial statements may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Group and joint venture, which is a
company incorporated in India, have, maintained in all
material respects, adequate internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements
and such internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated Ind AS financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Holding Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the
ICAL

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Ravi Bansal

Partner

Place of Signature: Mumbai Membership Number: 049365
Date: April 24, 2023 UDIN: 23049365BGWUAX6952
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 MARCH 2023

(% in Crores)

Particulars Note As at As at
No. 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

| ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

(@) Property, plant and equipments 3 3111.65 3212.77

(b) Capital work-in-progress 3A 189.63 173.90

(c) Investment property 4 796.61 838.73

(d) Investment property under development 4A 36.41 36.22

(e) Intangible assets 5 7.66 711

() Intangible assets under development 5A 0.06 0.69

(g) Investment accounted for using equity method 6 23.16 14.87

(h)  Financial assets
(i)  Investments 6 201.61 263.19
(i) Other financial assets 7 19.97 58.16

(i)  Deferred tax assets (net) 16 48.08 56.94

()  Advance tax (net of provisions) 68.74 61.22

(k)  Other non-current assets 8 21.58 25.65
SUB-TOTAL 4525.16 4749.45
CURRENT ASSETS

(a) Inventories 9 3256.10 2330.86

(b) Financial assets
(i) Investments 6 3.00 131.00
(i) Trade receivables 10 156.44 216.80
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 11 4851 34.82
(iv)  Other bank balances (other than (iii) above) 11 102.62 30.99
(v)  Other financial assets 7 16.09 13.18

(c) Other current assets 8 343.72 231.74
SUB-TOTAL 3926.48 2989.39
TOTAL 8451.64 7738.84

1l EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY

(@) Equity share capital 12 111.69 111.69

(b)  Other equity 13 3775.14 3607.13

(c)  Non controlling interest 152.12 158.03
SUB-TOTAL 4038.95 3876.85
LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
(@) Financial liabilities

(i)  Borrowings 14 399.09 381.82
(ia) Lease liabilities 14A 19.34 18.46

(i) Other financial liabilities 15 117.82 98.19
(b)  Provisions 20 2.48 1.50
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 16 40.64 -
(d)  Other non-current liabilities 17 454,50 520.21
SUB-TOTAL 1033.87 1020.18

CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Financial liabilities

(i)  Borrowings 18 638.62 933.74
(ia) Lease liabilities 14A 2.26 2.30
(i) Trade payables 19
1)  total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises 19.11 11.88
2)  total outstanding dues of trade payables other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises 766.40 846.08
(iiiy  Other financial liabilities 15 175.31 149.08
(b)  Provisions 20 182.46 181.87
(c) Other current liabilities 17 1594.66 716.86
SUB-TOTAL 3378.82 2841.81
TOTAL 8451.64 7738.84

Significant accounting policies

2A

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date

ForSRBC&COLLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Century Textiles and Industries Limited
Firm Registration Number 324982E / E300003 Directors

Rajashree Birla-DIN No: 00022995
Yazdi P. Dandiwala-DIN No: 01055000

per Ravi Bansal Atul K.Kedia Snehal Shah R.K.Dalmia Rajan A. Dalal-DIN No: 00546264
Partner Sr. Vice President (Legal) & Chief Financial Officer Managing Director Sohanlal K. Jain-DIN No: 02843676
Membership No: 049365 Company Secretary DIN No: 00040951 Preeti Vyas-DIN No: 02352395
Mumbai : 24 April 2023 Mumbai : 24 April 2023
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Particulars

(% in Crores)

Note Year Ended
No. 31 March 2023

Continuing Operations

Year Ended
31 March 2022

| Revenue from operations 21 4799.65 4130.95
1l Other income 22 27.52 43.06
Il Total Income (I + 1) 4827.17 4174.01
IV Expenses
(@) Cost of materials consumed 23 2731.37 2276.31
(b) Purchases of traded goods 24 44.80 223.58
(c) Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and traded 25
goods (58.75) (58.10)
(d) Employee benefits expense 26 344.83 323.64
(e) Finance costs 27 53.89 52.18
(f)  Depreciation and amortisation expense 28 227.08 230.66
(g) Other expenses 29 1210.07 921.01
Total Expenses 4553.29 3969.28
V  Profit before exceptional items, tax and share of profit of joint venture (llI- 1V) 273.88 204.73
VI Share of profit / (loss) of an associate (1.84) (0.13)
VIl  Profit before exceptional items and tax (V- VI) 272.04 204.60
VIII Exceptional ltems 35a 134.21 -
IX  Profit before tax from continuing operations (VII + VIII) 406.25 204.60
X  Tax expense of continuing operations
(a) Current tax 16 92.84 55.01
(b)  MAT credit recognised 16 - (54.99)
(c) Deferred tax 16 48.31 84.01
(d) Deferred tax relating to earlier period 16 0.55 (33.59)
Total tax expense 141.70 50.44
Xl  Profit after tax from continuing operations (IX - X) 264.55 154.16
Xl Discontinued Operations
(@) Loss before tax from discontinued operations - (7.04)
(b)  Gain on sale of Century Yarn and Denim division (Refer note 35) - 17.63
(c) Tax (Expense) / Income of discontinued operations - (3.05)
Profit after tax from discontinued operations - 7.54
Xl Profit for the year (XI + XII) 264.55 161.70
XIV Other comprehensive income
(i)  Items that will be re-classified to profit or loss - continuing operations
(a) Net movement in cash flow hedge reserve - 0.63
(b) Income tax on (a) - (0.21)
(i) Items that will not be re-classified to profit or loss - continuing
operations
(a) Re-measurement gain on defined benefit plans 0.82 0.97
(b) Netgain/ (loss) on Fair value through Other Comprehensive
Income (OCI) - Equity Instruments (59.37) 58.06
(c) Income tax on (a) & (b) (0.64) (0.34)
Total other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year (net of tax) (59.19) 59.11
XV Total comprehensive income for the year (XIII + XIV) 205.36 220.81
Profit / (Loss) for the period attributable to:
Owners of the Company 271.88 166.53
Non-controlling Interest (7.33) (4.83)
Other comprehensive income / (loss) attributable to:
Owners of the Company (59.19) 59.11
Non-controlling Interest - -
Total comprehensive income / (loss) attributable to:
Owners of the Company 212.69 225.64
Non-controlling Interest (7.33) (4.83)
XVI Earnings per equity share :
(a) Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share - Continuing operations 31 24.34 14.23
(b) Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share - Discontinued operations 31 - 0.68
(c) Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share - (Continuing & discontinued 31 24.34 14.91
operations)
Significant accounting policies 2A

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date
ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number 324982E / E300003

per Ravi Bansal
Partner
Membership No: 049365

Mumbai : 24 April 2023

Atul K.Kedia
Sr. Vice President (Legal) &
Company Secretary

Snehal Shah
Chief Financial Officer

Mumbai : 24 April 2023

Integrated Annual Report 2022-23

R.K.Dalmia
Managing Director
DIN No: 00040951

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Century Textiles and Industries Limited

Directors

Rajashree Birla-DIN No: 00022995
Yazdi P. Dandiwala-DIN No: 01055000
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(% in Crores)

Particulars Year Ended
31 March 2023

Year Ended
31 March 2022

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

NET PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 406.25 204.60
NET PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS = 10.59
Add / (Less):
Depreciation on property plant and equipments 192.19 195.10
Depreciation on investment property 32.49 33.54
Amortisation on intangible assets 2.40 2.02
Loss/(gain) on sale of property plant and equipments and investment
properties (0.14) 0.67
Allowance for credit loss 17.64 1.60
Unrealized exchange (gain) / loss (0.85) 0.17
Interest income (5.67) (6.67)
Provision for interest written back = (11.37)
Gain on sale of Century Yarn & Denim division = (49.22)
Share of loss of Joint Venture 1.84 0.13
Profit on transfer of leasehold land (134.27) -
Interest expense 53.89 52.18
Liabilities written back (8.21) (12.47)
Dividend on investments (4.69) (3.26)
146.68 202.48
Working capital adjustments
Decrease / (increase) in inventory (895.79) (790.70)
Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables 42.87 (60.59)
Decrease / (increase) in other financial assets 40.31 3.53
Decrease / (increase) in other assets (103.09) (101.76)
(Decrease) / increase in other financial liabilities 29.15 22.98
(Decrease) / increase in trade payables (63.55) 210.18
(Decrease) / increase in provisions 2.39 (12.32)
(Decrease) / increase in other liabilities 812.09 330.14
Decrease / (increase) in other bank balance (71.63) (5.09)
(207.25) (403.63)
Cash generated from operations 345.68 14.04
Add / (Less):
Direct tax paid (excluding tax on transfer of leasehold land amounting to
% 25.64 Crores) (74.72) (65.17)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 270.96 (51.13)
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property plant and equipments, Investment properties and
intangible assets (121.28) (128.45)
Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipments and investment
properties 3.3 2.70
Interest received (finance income) 0.64 10.34
(Purchase) / sale of investments (net) 131.05 (98.28)
Proceeds from sale of Century Yarn & Denim division (net of disposal cost) = 49.22
Investment in joint venture (10.00) (15.00)
Proceeds from transfer of leasehold land (net of expenses towards transfer
and tax amounting to ¥ 25.64 Crores) 130.08 -
Dividend on investments 4.69 3.26
NET CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES 138.49 (176.21)

Integrated Annual Report 2022-23



CENTURY TEXTILES AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Contd.)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Particulars

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(% in Crores)

Year Ended
31 March 2023

Year Ended
31 March 2022

Contribution from Non-Controlling Interest 1.41 19.83
Proceeds from borrowings 493.78 376.50
Repayment of borrowings (586.09) (400.92)
Net proceeds / (repayment) of short term borrowings (343.27) 311.08
Dividend paid (44.68) (11.48)
Lease liability paid (4.05) (4.43)
Interest paid (70.58) (83.83)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM / (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES (553.48) 206.75
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (144.03) (20.59)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 23.66 44.25
Cash and cash equivalents at the year end - (Refer note below) (120.37) 23.66

As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement

Cash and cash equivalents as per the above comprise of the following

Cash and cash equivalents - (Refer note 11) 48.51 34.82
Cash credit and overdraft facilities from banks - (Refer note 18) (168.88) (11.16)
Balance as per cash flow statement (120.37) 23.66

As per our report of even date
ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number 324982E / E300003

per Ravi Bansal Atul K.Kedia Snehal Shah
Partner Sr. Vice President (Legal) & Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: 049365 Company Secretary

Mumbai : 24 April 2023 Mumbai : 24 April 2023

Managing Director
DIN No: 00040951

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Century Textiles and Industries Limited

Directors

Rajashree Birla-DIN No: 00022995
Yazdi P. Dandiwala-DIN No: 01055000
Rajan A. Dalal-DIN No: 00546264
Sohanlal K. Jain-DIN No: 02843676
Preeti Vyas-DIN No: 02352395
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

2A.

2.1

Corporate information

Century Textiles & Industries Limited (‘Company’ or
'Parent Company') is a public company domiciled in
India and is incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act, applicable in India. The principal place
of business of the Company is located at Century
Bhawan, Dr. A. B. Road, Worli, Mumbai. The Company
and its subsidiaries (‘Group') is principally engaged
in the business of Textiles, Pulp and Paper and Real
estate.

The financial statements were approved for issue in
accordance with a resolution of the board of directors
on 24 April 2023.

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation

The Consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation
requirements of Division Il of Schedule Il to the
Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule I11),
as applicable to the CFS.

The Consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the
following assets and liabilities which have been
measured at fair value amount:

. Derivative financial instruments,

. Certain financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding
financial instruments),

Non-cash distribution liability

The financial statements are presented in INR and
all values are rounded to the nearest crores (INR
00,00,000), except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The Group consolidates all entities which are controlled
by it. The consolidated Ind AS financial statements
comprise the financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control exists when the parent
has power over the entity, is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns by using its
power over the entity. Power is demonstrated through
existing rights that give the ability to direct relevant
activities, those which significantly affect the entity's

Integrated Annual Report 2022-23

returns. The entities are consolidated from the date
control commences until the date control ceases.

Consolidation procedure:

The consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the
Group companies are consolidated on a line-by-line
basis and intra-group balances and transactions
including unrealised gain/loss from such transactions
are eliminated upon consolidation. These consolidated
Ind AS financial statements are prepared by applying
uniform accounting policies in use at the Group. Profit
or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income (OCl) are attributed to the equity holders of
the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interest having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group's holding that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amount of the Group's
holding and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative holding. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Group.

Group Information:

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
include subsidiaries listed in the table below:

Name Principal Country of
activities incorporation

% equity interest
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Birla Real India 100 100
Estates Estate

Pvt. Ltd.

Avarna  Real India 50 50
Projects Estate

LLP

Birla Real India 40 40
Tisya Estate

LLP

Birla Real India 47 47
Arnaa Estate

LLP

Birla Trading India 100 100
Century in textiles

Exports

Pvt. Ltd.

Birla Trading  United States 100 100
Century in textiles

LLC

Consolidation of entities in which the Group holds less
than a majority of voting rights (de facto control):



CENTURY TEXTILES AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

2.2

The Group controls the decision related to the all
relevant activities in respect of the operation of the
enitity and hence has consolidated the LLP's as
subsidiaries as per Ind AS-110 even though group
holds 50% or less voting rights in the LLPs.

Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance
sheet based on current / non-current classification. An
asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or
consumed in normal operating cycle

. Held primarily for the purpose of trading

. Expected to be realised within twelve months
after the reporting period, or

. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from
being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

. It is expected to be settled in normal operating
cycle

. It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

. It is due to be settled within twelve months after
the reporting period, or

+  There is no unconditional right to defer the
settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as
non-current assets and liabilities. The operating
cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets
for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. Except for the under construction real
estate business, the Group has identified twelve
months as its operating cycle.

The normal operating cycle in respect of operation
relating to under construction real estate project
depends on signing of agreement, size of the project,
phasing of the project, type of development, project
complexities, approvals needed and realisation of
project into cash and cash equivalents and range
from 3 to 7 years. Accordingly, project related assets
and liabilities have been classified into current and
non-current based on operating cycle of respective
projects. All other assets and liabilities have been
classified into current and non-current based on a
period of twelve months.

2.3 Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments, such
as derivatives, investments etc, at fair value at each
balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

. In the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and
best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

+  Level T — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable

. Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Leading with purpose, growing with responsibility.
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For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group
has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the
asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy
as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value.
Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
relevant notes.

Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of the goods or services are transferred
to the customer at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The
Group has generally concluded that it is the principal in
its revenue arrangements, because it typically controls
the goods or services before transferring them to the
customer.

Goods and Service tax (GST) is not received by the
Group on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on
value added to the commodity by the seller on behalf
of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from
revenue.

Sale of Goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point
in time when control of the asset is transferred to
the customer, generally on delivery of the goods The
Group considers whether there are other promises in
the contract that are separate performance obligations
to which a portion of the transaction price needs to
be allocated in determining the transaction price for
the sale of goods, the Group considers the effects of
variable consideration, and consideration payable to
the customer (if any).

Sale of real estate units

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of
residential units or service to customers, in an amount
that reflects the consideration the Group expects
to receive in exchange for those residential units.
The Group determines the performance obligations
associated with the contract with customers at
contract inception and also determine whether they
satisfy the performance obligation over time or at a
point in time. In case of residential units, the Group
satisfies the performance obligation and recognises
revenue at a point in time i.e.,, upon completion and
delivery of possession of the residential units to the
customers as per the agreement.

Integrated Annual Report 2022-23

To estimate the transaction price in a contract, the
Group adjusts the promised amount of consideration
for the time value of money if that contract contains
a significant financing component. The Group when
adjusting the promised amount of consideration for
a significant financing component is to recognise
revenue at an amount that reflects the cash selling
price of the transferred residential unit.

Sale of services

The Group recognises revenue from facility
management services over time, using an input
method to measure progress towards complete
satisfaction of the service, because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group.

Variable Consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the Group estimates the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange
for transferring the goods to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration
is subsequently resolved. Some contracts for the sale
provide customers with discounts. The discounts give
rise to variable consideration.

Discounts

Discounts includes target and growth rebates, price
reductions, incentives to customers or retailers. To
estimate the amount of discount, the Group applies
accumulated experience using the most likely method.
The Group determines that the estimates of discounts
are not constrained based on its historical experience,
business forecast and the current economic
conditions. The Group then applies the requirements
on constraining estimates of variable consideration
and recognises a refund liability for the expected
discount. No element of financing is deemed present
as the sales are made with credit terms largely ranging
between 7 days to 120 days.

Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services transferred to the
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customer. If the Group performs by transferring goods
or services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract
asset is recognised for the earned consideration that
is conditional.

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Group's right to an amount
of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the
passage of time is required before payment of the
consideration is due).

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or
servicestoacustomerfor which the Group hasreceived
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer. If a customer pays consideration
before the Group transfers goods or services to the
customer, a contract liability is recognised when the
payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is
earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract

Refund liabilities

A refund liability is the obligation to refund some or all
of the consideration received (or receivable) from the
customer and is measured at the amount the Group
ultimately expects it will have to return to the customer.
The Group updates its estimates of refund liabilities
(and the corresponding change in the transaction
price) at the end of each reporting period.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attached conditions will be complied with. When
the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as
income on a systematic basis over the periods that the
related costs, for which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it
is recognised as income in equal amounts over the
expected useful life of the related asset.

When the Group receives grants of non-monetary
assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair
value amounts and released to profit or loss over the
expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of
the benefit of the underlying asset i.e. by equal annual
instalments.

Government grants such as sales tax incentive, export
benefit schemes are recognized in the Statement of

2.6

Profit and Loss as a part of other operating revenues
whereas grants related to royalty, power incentives
and interest subsidies are netted of from the related
expenses.

Taxes

Current tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax
laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Current income tax relating to items recognised
outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss. Current tax items are recognised in correlation to
the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in
equity. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on
temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred
tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be utilised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at
each reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit
orloss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax
items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction in OCI or equity.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged
to the statement of profit and loss as current tax for
the year.

The deferred tax asset is recognised for MAT credit
available only to the extent that it is probable that the
concerned Group will pay normal income tax during
the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT
credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in
which the Group recognizes MAT credit as an asset,
it is created by way of credit to the statement of profit
and loss as credit in current tax expense and shown
as part of deferred tax asset. The Group reviews the
“MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date
and writes down the asset to the extent that it is no
longer probable that it will pay normal tax during the
specified period

GST paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring
expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount
of GST paid, except:

- When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets
or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognized
as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of the expense item, as applicable
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- When receivables and payables are stated with
the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to,
the taxation authority is included as part of receivables
or payables in the balance sheet.

Property, plant and equipments

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of
accumulated impairment loss, if any. Plant and
equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part
of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for
long-term construction projects if the recognition
criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group depreciates them separately based on their
specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection
is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying
amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement
if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair
and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss
as incurred.

Depreciation is recognised so as to amortise the cost of
assets (other than freehold land and properties under
construction) less their residual values over their useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Useful life
30 years — 60 years

Asset Class

Buildings

Plant & equipments 3years — 25 years

Electric installations 3years — 10 years

Furniture & fixtures 3- 10 years
Office equipments 3-10 years
Vehicles 5-10years

The management has estimated the above useful life
and the same is supported by technical experts, where
relevant.

Refer Note 2.11 on Accounting of leases as per Ind As
116 applied from April T, 2019 for right of use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
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on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that
are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated  amortisation  and  accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for
on a prospective basis. Cost of software capitalised is
amortised over its useful life which is estimated to be
a period of five years. Mining rights are amortised over
the period of the respective mining agreement.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including
property under construction for such purposes).
Investment properties are measured initially at cost,
including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
if any.

The cost includes the cost of replacing parts and
borrowing costs for long-term construction projects
if the recognition criteria are met. When significant
parts of the investment properties are required to
be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives. All other
repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit
or loss as incurred.

The Group, based on technical assessment made by
management, depreciates the building over estimated
useful lives of 40 years. The management believes
that these estimated useful lives are realistic and
reflect fair approximation of the period over which the
assets are likely to be used.

Though the Group measures investment property
using cost based measurement, the fair value of
investment properties are disclosed in notes. Fair
value are determined based on an annual evaluation
performed by an accredited external independent
valuer.

2.10 Non-current assets held for sale / distribution to

owners and discontinued operations

The Group classifies non-current assets and disposal
groups as held for sale / distribution if their carrying
amounts will be recovered principally through a sale /
distribution rather than through continuing use. Actions
required to complete the sale / distribution should
indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to
the sale will be made or that the decision to sell will
be withdrawn. Management must be committed to the
sale/distribution expected within one year from the
date of classification.

For these purposes, sale transactions include
exchanges of non-current assets for other non-current
assets when the exchange has commercial substance.
The criteria for held for sale / distribution classification
is regarded met only when the assets or disposal
group is available for immediate sale / distribution in
its present condition, subject only to terms that are
usual and customary for sales / distribution of such
assets (or disposal groups), its sale / distribution
is highly probable; and it will genuinely be sold, not
abandoned. The Group treats sale/distribution of the
asset or disposal group to be highly probable when:

The appropriate level of management is
committed to a plan to sell the asset (or disposal
group),

* An active programme to locate a buyer and
complete the planhasbeeninitiated (if applicable),

+  The asset (or disposal group) is being actively
marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in
relation to its current fair value,

+  The sale is expected to qualify for recognition as
a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification and

Actions required to complete the plan indicate
that it is unlikely that significant changes to
the plan will be made or that the plan will be
withdrawn.

Non-current assets held for sale / for distribution to
owners and disposal groups are measured at the lower
of their carrying amount and the fair value less costs to
sell / distribute. Assets and liabilities classified as held
for sale / distribution are presented separately in the
balance sheet.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
once classified as held for sale / distribution are not
depreciated or amortised.

A disposal group qualifies as discontinued operation
if it is a component of an entity that either has been
disposed of, or is classified as held for sale, and:
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. Represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations,

. Is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of
a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations.

Discontinued operations are excluded from the results
of continuing operations and are presented as a single
amount as profit or loss after tax from discontinued
operations in the statement of profit and loss.

Additional disclosures are provided in Note 35. All
other notes to the financial statements mainly include
amounts for continuing operations, unless otherwise
mentioned.

2.11 Leases

At inception of contract, the Group assesses whether
the Contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. At inception or
on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease
component, the Group allocates consideration in the
contract to each lease component on the basis of their
relative standalone price.

As a lessee

i)  Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at
the commencement date of the lease. Right-
of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated  depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, lease payments made
at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received and estimate of costs to
dismantle. Right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease term and the estimated useful lives of the
assets.

The Group presents right-to-use assets within
the same line item as that within which the
corresponding underlying assets would be
presented if they were owned by the Group.

ii) Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the
Group recognises lease liabilities measured at
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the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. In calculating the present
value of lease payments, the Group generally
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the discount rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable.

After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion
of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. The carrying amount is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in index or rate. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in the lease payments or a change
in the assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

The Group presents lease liabilities under
financial liabilities in the Balance Sheet.

Short term leases and leases of low value of
assets

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term leases.
It also applies the lease of low-value assets
recognition exemption that are considered to be
low value. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low value assets are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

As a lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. Rental income from operating lease is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised over the lease term on the
same basis as rental income. Contingent rents
are recognised as revenue in the period in which
they are earned.

Leases are classified as finance leases when
substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership transfer from the Group to the lessee.
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases
are recorded as receivables at the Group's net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income
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is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect
a constant periodic rate of return on the net
investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

2.12 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost
of the asset. Borrowing cost also includes exchange
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to
the borrowing costs.

2.13 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present
location and condition are accounted for as follows:

. Raw materials: costincludes cost of purchase and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Cost is
determined on weighted average cost basis.

. Finished goods and work in progress: cost
includes cost of direct materials and labour and
a proportion of manufacturing overheads based
on the normal operating capacity but excluding
borrowing costs. Cost is determined on weighted
average cost basis.

+  Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Cost is
determined on weighted average basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

2.14 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether
there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the
asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating
units (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. Recoverable amount is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or group of assets. When
the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
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recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired
and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less
costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken
into account. If no such transactions can be identified,
an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples,
quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or
other available fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed
budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Group's CGUs to which the
individual assets are allocated. These budgets and
forecast calculations generally cover a period of five
years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is
calculated and applied to project future cash flows
after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections
beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/
forecasts, the Group extrapolates cash flow projections
in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate
for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be
justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the products,
industries, or country or countries in which the entity
operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.
Impairment loss of continuing operations, including

impairment on inventories is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

2.15 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time
value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
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third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it
is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measured
reliably.

Onerous contracts

If the Group has a contract that is onerous, the present
obligation under the contract is recognised and
measured as a provision. However, before a separate
provision for an onerous contract is established,
the Group recognises any impairment loss that has
occurred on assets dedicated to that contract.

An onerous contract is a contract under which the
unavoidable costs (i.e, the costs that the Group
cannot avoid because it has the contract) of meeting
the obligations under the contract exceed the
economic benefits expected to be received under it.
The unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the
least net cost of exiting from the contract, which is the
lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation
or penalties arising from failure to fulfill it

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet
comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months
or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank
overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of
the Group's cash management.

2.17 Employee Benefits

Defined Contribution plans

For certain employees of the Group, employee benefit
in the form of Provident fund, Employees State
Insurance Contribution and Labour Welfare fund
are defined contribution plans. The Group has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the
respective fund. The Group recognizes contribution
payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense,
when an employee renders the related service. If
the contribution payable to the scheme for service
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the
contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the
scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting
the contribution already paid. If the contribution
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already paid exceeds the contribution due for services
received before the balance sheet date, then excess
is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-
payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future
payment or a cash refund.

Defined benefit plans

The Group provides for retirement benefit in the form
of gratuity. The Group's liability towards this benefit is
determined on the basis of actuarial valuation using
Projected Unit Credit Method at the date of balance
sheet.

In respect of certain employees, provident fund
contributions are made to a trust administered by the
Group. Periodic contributions to the Fund are charged
to the Statement of profit and loss. The Group has an
obligation to make good the shortfall, if any, between
the return from the investment of the trust and interest
rate notified by the Government of India. Such shortfall
is recognized in the Statement of profit and loss.
The Group's liability is determined on the basis of
an actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit
method.

Remeasurement, comprising of actuarial gains and
losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the
balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through OCI in the period in which
they occur. Remeasurement is not reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on
the earlier of:

+  The date of the plan amendment or curtailment
and

+  The date that the Group recognises related
restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate
to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group
recognises the following changes in the net defined
benefit obligation as an expense in statement of profit
and loss:

. Service costs comprising current service
costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and

Net interest expense or income
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Compensated absences

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized
within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term
employee benefit and this is shown under current
provision in the Balance Sheet. The Group measures
the expected cost of such absences as the additional
amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused
entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting
date.

The Group treats accumulated leave expected to be
carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term
employee benefit for measurement purposes and this
is shown under long term provisions in the Balance
Sheet. Such long-term compensated absences are
provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the
projected unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial
gains / losses are immediately taken to the Statement
of Profit and Loss and are not deferred. The Group
presents the leave as a current liability in the balance
sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional
right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the
reporting date. Where the Group has the unconditional
legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for
a period beyond 12 months, the same is presented as
non-current liability.

2.18 Research and Development

Research expenditure, including overheads, on
research and development, is charged as an expense
in the year in which incurred.

2.19 Foreign currencies

The Group's financial statements are presented in INR,
which is also the Group's functional currency.

Transactions in  foreign currencies are initially
recorded by the Group at INR spot rate at the date, the
transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency spot rates of
exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in profit
or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions.
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2.20 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to
a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value
plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial
assets are classified in four categories:

. Financial Assets at amortised cost

. Financial Assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial Assets including derivatives and equity
instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL)

. Equity instruments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortised cost
if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the
principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost
is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation
is included in other income in the profit or loss. The
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the
profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade
and other receivables, loans and other financial assets.
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Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are
measured at fair value. For all equity instruments, the
Group may make an irrevocable election to present in
other comprehensive income subsequent changes in
the fair value. All fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There
is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L,
even on sale of investment. However, the Group may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. The
Group has made such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irrevocable.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised when:

+  The rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired or

+  The Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
'‘pass-through' arrangement and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
througharrangement, itevaluatesifandtowhatextentit
has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When
it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset
and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.
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Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies
expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement
and recognition of impairment loss on the following
financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and
are measured at amortised cost e.qg., loans, debt
securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank
balance

b) Financial assets that are equity instruments and
are measured as at FVTOCI

c) Lease receivables under Ind AS 17

d) Trade receivables or any contractual right to
receive cash or another financial asset that result
from transactions that are within the scope of Ind
AS 115

The Group follows 'simplified approach’ for recognition
of impairment loss allowance on:

. Trade receivables

+  All lease receivables resulting from transactions
within the scope of Ind AS 17

The application of simplified approach does not
require the Group to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its
initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial
assets and risk exposure, the Group determines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the
credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has
not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to
provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk
has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in
a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument
improves such that there is no longer a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then
the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss
allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting
from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a
portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash

flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects
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to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the
original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity
is required to consider:

All contractual terms of the financial instrument
(including prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) over the expected life of the financial
instrument. However, in rare cases when the
expected life of the financial instrument cannot
be estimated reliably, then the entity is required
to use the remaining contractual term of the
financial instrument

. Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or
other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms

As a practical expedient, the Group uses a provision
matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on
portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix
is based on its historically observed default rates
over the expected life of the trade receivables and
is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates
are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal)
recognized during the period is recognized as income /
expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This
amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’
in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various
financial instruments is described below:

. Financial assets measured as at amortised
cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease
receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance,
i.e, as an integral part of the measurement of
those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance
reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset
meets write-off criteria, the Group does not
reduce impairment allowance from the gross
carrying amount.

Loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the
balance sheet, i.e. as a liability.

. Equity instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since
financial assets are already reflected at fair value,
impairment allowance is not further reduced
from its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented
as 'accumulated impairment amount' in the OCI.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment
loss, the Group combines financial instruments on
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the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the
objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed
to enable significant increases in credit risk to be
identified on a timely basis.

The Group does not have any purchased of originated
credit impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e., financial
assets which are credit impaired on purchase/
origination.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and
other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and
derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in the profit or loss. The Group has not
designated any financial liability as at fair value
through profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Group.
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.

Leading with purpose, growing with responsibility.
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Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments:

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such
as forward currency contracts, interest rate swaps to
manage its foreign currency risks and interest rate
risks respectively.

These derivative instruments are designated as cash
flow, fair value or net investment hedges and are
entered into for period consistent with currency. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at
fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets
when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities
when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are
recognised in the Statement of profit and loss except
for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is
recognised in OCl and later reclassified to profit or loss
when the hedge item affects profit or loss.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are
classified as:

- Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to
variability in cash flows that is either attributable
to a particular risk associated with a recognised
asset or liability or a highly probable forecast
transaction or the foreign currency risk in an
unrecognised firm commitment

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group
formally designates and documents the hedge
relationship to which the Group wishes to apply hedge
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accounting and the risk management objective and
strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation
includes the Group's risk management objective
and strategy for undertaking hedge, the hedging /
economic relationship, the hedged item or transaction,
the nature of the risk being hedged, hedge ratio and
how the entity will assess the effectiveness of changes
in the hedging instrument'’s fair value in offsetting the
exposure to changes in the hedged item's fair value
or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such
hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving
offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and
are assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that
they actually have been highly effective throughout
the financial reporting periods for which they were
designated.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging
instrument is recognised in OCI in the cash flow hedge
reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

The Group uses forward currency contracts as hedges
of its exposure to foreign currency risk in forecast
transactions and firm commitments. The ineffective
portion relating to foreign currency contracts is
recognised in finance costs.

Amounts recognised as OCl are transferred to profit or
loss when the hedged transaction affects profit or loss,
such as when the hedged financial income or financial
expense is recognised or when a forecast sale occurs.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated
or exercised without replacement or rollover (as part of
the hedging strategy), or if its designation as a hedge
is revoked, or when the hedge no longer meets the
criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised in OCI remains separately
in equity until the forecast transaction occurs or the
foreign currency firm commitment is met.

2.21 Earnings Per Share:

Basic Earnings per share (EPS) amounts are calculated
by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity
holders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to equity holders adjusted for the
effects of potential equity shares by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during
the year plus the weighted average number of equity
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shares that would be issued on conversion of all the
dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

2.22 Cash dividend and non-cash distribution to equity

holders

The Group recognises a liability to make cash or
non-cash distributions to equity holders when the
distribution is authorised, and the distribution is
no longer at the discretion of the Group. As per the
corporate laws, a distribution is authorised when it
is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding
amount is recognised directly in equity.

Non-cash distributions are measured at the fair value
of the assets to be distributed with fair value re-
measurement recognised directly in equity.

Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference
between the carrying amount of the liability and the
carrying amount of the assets distributed is recognised
in the statement of profit and loss.

2.23 Contingent liabilities

2B.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group
or a present obligation that is not recognized because
it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability
also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a
liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot
be measured reliably. The Group does not recognize
a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the
financial statements.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and
assumptions

The preparation of the Group's consolidated
financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the Grouping disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in
future periods. Difference between actual results and
estimates are recognised in the periods in which the
results are known / materialised.

Estimates and assumptions:

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below. The Group has based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances
and assumptions about future developments,
however, may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising that are beyond the control
of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur.

a) Employee benefit plans

The Group's obligation on account of gratuity
and compensated absences is determined based
on actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions that may
differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount
rate, future salary increases and mortality rates.
Due to the complexities involved in the valuation
and its long-term nature, these liabilities are
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions.
All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting
date.

The parameter most subject to change is the
discount rate. In determining the appropriate
discount rate, the management considers the
interest rates of government bonds in currencies
consistent with the currencies of the post-
employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available
mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend
to change only at interval in response to
demographic changes. Future salary increases
and gratuity increases are based on expected
future inflation rates.

Further details about gratuity obligations are
given in Note 36.

b) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in
active markets, their fair value is measured using

Leading with purpose, growing with responsibility.
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<)

valuation technigues including the DCF model.
The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where
this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is
required in establishing fair values. Judgements
include considerations of inputs such as
liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the
reported fair value of financial instruments. See
Note 43 and 44 for further disclosures.

Useful Lives of Property, Plant & Equipment:

The Group uses its technical expertise along with
historical and industry trends for determining the
economic life of anasset/ component of an asset.
The useful lives are reviewed by management
periodically and revised, if appropriate. In case of
a revision, the unamortised depreciable amount
is charged over the remaining useful life of the
assets

2C. Amendments not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") notifies new
standard or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023,
MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable from
April 1, 2023, as below:

(i)

(i)

Ind AS 1 - Disclosure of material accounting
policies:

The amendments related to shifting of disclosure
of erstwhile “significant accounting policies” to
“material accounting policies” in the notes to
the financial statements requiring companies
to reframe their accounting policies to make
them more “entity specific. This amendment
aligns with the “material" concept already
required under International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS). The Company does not expect
this amendment to have any significant impact in
its financial statements.

Ind AS 8 - Definition of accounting estimates:

The amendments will help entities to distinguish
between accounting policies and accounting
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(iii)

(iv)

estimates. The definition of a “change in
accounting estimates” has been replaced with
a definition of "accounting estimates.” Under
the new definition, accounting estimates are
“monetary amounts in financial statements that
are subject to measurement uncertainty.” Entities
develop accounting estimates if accounting
policies require items in financial statements to
be measured in a way that involves measurement
uncertainty. The Company does not expect this
amendment to have any significant impact in its
financial statements.

Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes

The amendments narrowed the scope of the
recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24
of Ind AS 12. At the date of transition to Ind ASs,
a first-time adopter shall recognize a deferred
tax asset to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary difference can be utilized.
Similarly, a deferred tax liability for all deductible
and taxable temporary differences associated
with:

a) right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

b) decommissioning, restoration and similar
liabilities and the corresponding amounts
recognized as part of the cost of the related
asset.

Therefore, if a company has not yet recognised
deferred tax on right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities or has recognised deferred tax on net
basis, the same need to recognize on gross basis
based on the carrying amount of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities.

Ind AS 103 - Common control Business
Combination

The amendments modify the disclosure
requirement for business combination under
common control in the first financial statement
following the business combination. It requires
to disclose the date on which the transferee
obtains control of the transferor is required to be
disclosed.
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(Continued)

B. Right of use assets

(% in Crores)

Description Land Building Total
Cost

Balance as on 1 April 2021 due to adoption of Ind AS 116 58.08 17.75 75.83
Additions - - -
Disposals - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 58.08 17.75 75.83
Additions - 3.02 3.02
Disposals (25.66) (4.98) (30.64)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 32.42 15.78 48.20

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as on 1 April 2021 due to adoption of INnd AS 116 9.42 4.05 13.47

Depreciation expense for the year 1.07 2.67 3.74

Disposal of assets - - -

Balance as at 31 March 2022 10.49 6.72 17.21
Depreciation expense for the year 1.16 2.41 3.57
Disposal of assets (3.18) (4.98) (8.16)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 8.47 4.15 12.62
Net block

Balance as at 31 March 2022 47.59 11.08 58.62
Balance as at 31 March 2023 23.95 11.63 35.58

C: Net book value

(% in Crores)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Owned assets 3076.07 3154.15
Right-of-use assets 35.58 58.62
Total 3111.65 3212.77
Notes:

i.  During the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, no impairment indicators existed for any of its Cash
Generating Unit (CGU) and accordingly no provision for impairment has been recognised.

ii. Capitalised borrowing cost: No borrowing costs are capitalised on property, plant and equipment under construction
iii.  Title deeds

(a) All title deeds of immovable properties included in property, plant and equipments are held in the name of the
Company as at 31 March 2023.

(b) Refer note 14 and note 18 for details of pledge and securities.

Integrated Annual Report 2022-23 |m|
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NOTE 3A | CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS (CWIP)

(i) Ageing schedule

(% in Crores)

Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
Particulars Less than 1-2 years 2-3years  More than
1 year 3 years
As at 31 March 2023
Projects in progress 98.03 75.99 12.86 2.75 189.63
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 98.03 75.99 12.86 2.75 189.63
As at 31 March 2022
Projects in progress 129.24 30.90 3.00 10.76 173.90
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 129.24 30.90 3.00 10.76 173.90

(ii) CWIP completion schedule for projects overdue

To be completed in

Project Less than 1-2 years 2-3years  More than
1 year 3 years

As at 31 March 2023
Paper Machine 3 & 4 upgradation 3.81 - - -
275 TPH Evaporator Plant 114.22 - - -
As at 31 March 2022

Paper Machine 3 & 4 48.20 - - _
275 TPH Evaporator Plant 82.37 - _ _
Paper Machine 6 575 - - _
100 KVA Transformer Project 8.57 - - _

|m| Leading with purpose, growing with responsibility.
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NOTE 4 | INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(% in Crores)

Particulars Land Buildings Total
(Including TDRs)

.  Gross Block
Balance as at 1 April 2021 7.67 1,042.02 1,049.69
Additions 2.46 0.27 2.73
Disposals - - -
Transferred from property, plant and equipment 8.77 - 8.77
Balance as at 31 March 2022 18.90 1042.29 1061.19
Additions - 0.16 0.16
Disposals - (11.52) (11.52)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 18.90 1030.93 1049.83

Il.  Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 1 April 2021 - 188.92 188.92
Depreciation expense for the year - 33.54 33.54
Disposal of assets - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 - 222.46 222.46
Depreciation expense for the year - 32.49 32.49
Disposal of assets - (1.73) (1.73)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 - 253.22 253.22

Net Block

Balance as at 31 March 2022 18.90 819.83 838.73

Balance as at 31 March 2023 18.90 777.71 796.61

Notes :

(i) Information regarding Income and expenditure of Investment properties

(% in Crores)

Particulars Year Ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Rental income derived from Investment properties (See Note 21) 124.73 126.45

Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) generating (26.19) (22.99)

rental income

Profit arising from investment properties before depreciation and indirect 98.54 103.46

expenses

Less: Depreciation 32.49 33.54

Profit arising from investment properties before indirect expenses 66.05 69.92

(i) Investment properties consist of two commercial buildings and a land in India which are leased to third parties.

Integrated Annual Report 2022-23
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NOTE 4 | INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(i)

(vi)

(vii)

viil.

Out of the total land under Investment Properties, 6.31 acres of land amounting to % 0.01 crores, which was allotted to the
Company on lease under the Poorer Class Accommodation Scheme 1898 as amended by 1913 Act and 1925 Act, which
stated that in the event of no default being made in complying with the conditions of the lease, then on expiry of the lease
all the right, title and interest shall vest with the Company. The lease expired in the year 1955 and the Company has filed
a petition for execution of formal deed of conveyance, refer below details

Relevant line Description Gross Title deeds  Whether title deed holder  Property Reason for not
item in the ofitemof  carrying heldinthe is a promoter, director held since  being held in
Balance sheet property value name of or relative of promoter/  which date  the name of the
Rin director or employee of company
Crores) promoter / director
Investment Land - 0.01 Municipal NO 50+ years Ongoing
properties Freehold Corporation litigation with
of Greater MCGM in
Mumbai Bombay High
(MCGM) Court

Refer note 14 and note 18 for details of pledge and securities.

Capitalised borrowing cost :

No borrowing costs is capitalised during the year (31 March 2022  Nil) in Investment property under development.
Leasing arrangements

Certain investment properties are leased to tenants under long term operating leases with rentals payable monthly. (Refer
Note 45)

Fair value

Description of valuation techniques used and key inputs to valuation on investment properties:

(% in Crores)

Valuation technique Fair value hierarchy Fair Value
Particulars

(See Note below) (See Note below) M 31 March 2022
Land (Worli land excluding Stamp Duty Reckonerrate  Level 2 660.67 681.84
land classified as Real estate
inventory)
Commercial Property * Stamp Duty Reckoner rate  Level 2 2328.84 2291.25

* Includes Investment property under development

The above valuation of the investment properties are in accordance with the Ready Reckoner rates prescribed by
the Government of Maharashtra for the purpose of levying stamp duty. The Independent Valuer has referred to the
publications and Government website for Ready Reckoner rates. Suitable adjustments if required have been made to
account for availability of FSI in land parcels in Mumbai in accordance with the guidelines prescribed by the Department
of Registrations and Stamps. The adjustments related to floors, lifts and other factors are not considered for valuation of
commercial property. Since the valuation is based on the published Ready Reckoner rates, the Company has classified the
same under Level 2.

|m| Leading with purpose, growing with responsibility.
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NOTE 4A | INVESTMENT PROPERTY UNDER DEVELOPMENT (IPUD)

(i) Ageing schedule

(X in Crores)

Amount in IPUD for a period of Total
Particulars Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than
1 year 3 years
As at 31 March 2023
Projects in progress 0.62 0.11 0.15 35.53 36.41
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 0.62 0.11 0.15 35.53 36.41
As at 31 March 2022
Projects in progress 0.42 0.01 - 35.79 36.22
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 0.42 0.01 - 35.79 36.22

NOTE 5 |INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(X in Crores)

Particulars Computer softwares

. Gross Block
Balance as at 1 April 2021 2475
Additions 1.30
Disposals (0.05)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 26.00
Additions 2.95
Disposals -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 28.95

Il.  Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 1 April 2021 16.91
Amortisation expense for the year 2.02
Disposal of assets (0.04)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 18.89
Amortisation expense for the year 2.40
Disposal of assets -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 21.29
Net Block
Balance as at 31 March 2022 71
Balance as at 31 March 2023 7.66

Integrated Annual Report 2022-23
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NOTE 5A | INTANGIBLE ASSET UNDER DEVELOPMENT (IAUD)

(i) Ageing schedule

(% in Crores)

Amount in IAUD for a period of Total
Particulars Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than
1 year 3 years
As at 31 March 2023
Projects in progress - - 0.06 - 0.06
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total - - 0.06 - 0.06
As at 31 March 2022
Projects in progress 0.25 0.44 - 0.69
Projects temporarily suspended - - - -
Total 0.25 0.44 - 0.69

NOTE 6 | FINANCIAL ASSETS - NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Particulars

(X in Crores)

31 March 2023

I.  NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS

As at
31 March 2022

A. Investments carried at fair value through OCI

Quoted investments (Refer note (i) below) 157.33 216.68

Unquoted investments (Refer note (i) & (ii) below) 38.46 38.50

Total (Quoted & unquoted investments) 195.79 255.18
B. Investments carried at amortised cost

Quoted Government and trust securities 5.82 8.01

Total [A] + [B] 201.61 263.19
C. Investment accounted for using equity method

Unquoted investments :

Investment in joint venture (Refer Note 47)

Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each, of Birla Advanced Kints Private Limited 23.16 14.87

2,50,00,000 Shares (31 March 2022, 1,50,00,000 shares)

Total 23.16 14.87

Total [A] + [B] + [C] 224.77 278.06

Note:

(i) Investments at fair value through OCI (fully paid) reflect investment in quoted and unquoted equity securities. These equity
shares are designated as FVTOCI as they are not held for trading purpose and are not in similar line of business as the
Company. Thus disclosing their fair value fluctuation in profit and loss will not reflect the purpose of holding. Refer Note

44 for determination of their fair values

Leading with purpose, growing with responsibility.
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NOTE 6 | FINANCIAL ASSETS - NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS (Continued)

(i) Investments in unquoted investments includes investment in Industry House Limited (IHL) amounting to ¥ 26.79 Crore
(31 March 2022 % 27.38 Crore). The Company is holding 35.28% of equity shares in IHL. As the Company does not have
significant influence over Industry House Limited, the Company has not considered it as an associate as per Ind AS 28
“Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures" and hence not consolidated. The Company's share of profit from Industry
House Limited is not significant.

(% in Crores)

Particulars

As at

As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Il.  CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss

Investment in mutual funds

8,315 units (31 March 2022: 3,78,770 units) of SBI Overnight Fund Direct Growth 3.00 131.00
Total 3.00 131.00
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(At amortised cost)

(% in Crores)
Non-Current Current

Particulars

As at
31 March 2023

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

As at

(Unsecured, considered good, unless
otherwise specified)

a) Interest receivable - - 10.45 5.42
b)  Security deposits 6.53 7.27 1.55 0.67
c) Unbilled lease rentals 1.87 2.23 1.50 1.04
d) Others - 0.17 2.59 5.57
- Doubtful = - 0.14 0.14
Less: Allowance for credit loss - - (0.14) (0.14)

8.40 9.67 16.09 12.70

e) ngenzg)lease receivables (Refer 148 i i 0.48
Less: Allowance for credit loss = - = -

1.48 - - 0.48

f) iaonnl}[]);f:;tsﬂxth more than 12 10.09 48.49 ) )
Total 19.97 58.16 16.09 13.18
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OTHER ASSETS

(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise specified)

(% in Crores)

Particulars

(a) Capital advances

As at
31 March 2023

Non-Current

Current

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

(i)  Forproperty, plantand equipment 7.70 2.88 - -
7.70 2.88 = -
(b) Advances other than capital advances
(i)  Exportincentives receivable 0.05 3.64 3.95 6.14
(i) Balances with Government
authorities (other than income
taxes) 7.29 6.52 31.63 48.13
(i)  Amount paid against disputed
demands 4.55 3.94 = -
(iv) Advances to vendors / suppliers = - 135.47 64.08
(v) Prepaid expenses 0.83 7.50 32.89 34.53
(vi) Gratuity - plan asset (Refer Note
36) = - 0.83 -
(vii) Contract assets (brokerage on
sale of real estates inventories) - - 135.02 72.89
(viii) Others 1.16 117 398 5.97
13.88 22.77 343.72 231.74
Total 21.58 25.65 343.72 231.74
INVENTORIES

(At cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower)

(% in Crores)

Particulars As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

(a) Raw materials 252.91 160.36

Goods in transit 50.61 12.28

(b) Work-in-progress 241.62 235.40

(c) Finished and semi-finished goods 128.79 94.67

Goods in transit 17.73 -

(d) Stock-in-trade of goods acquired for trading 1.41 0.73

(e) Fuels, stores and spares 72.65 84.07

Goods in transit 0.85 0.52

(f)  Other materials 2.66 3.12

(9) Real estate inventory 2486.87 1739.71

Total 3256.10 2330.86
Note :

(a) Cost of inventories recognised as an expense includes ¥ 3.13 Crores (31 March 2022 % 3.07 Crores) in respect of write-

downs of inventory to net realisable value.

For charge created on inventories refer note 14 and 18

Real estate inventory includes borrowing costs of ¥ 47.43 crores (31 March 2022 % 60.78 crores)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

NOTE 10 | TRADE RECEIVABLES

(At amortised cost)

(% in Crores)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2023

Current

As at

31 March 2022

Secured, considered good 10.32 32.04
Unsecured, considered good 146.12 184.76
Unsecured, considered doubtful 0.59 0.81
Less: Allowance for credit losses (0.59) (0.81)
Receivables - credit impaired 23.59 12.50
Less: Allowance for credit losses (23.59) (12.50)
Total 156.44 216.80
Of the above, trade receivables from:

- Related Parties (Refer Note 40) 1.51 -
- Others 154.93 216.80
Total 156.44 216.80
Notes :

(i)  No trade receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other

(if)

person. Nor any trade receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner
or a director or a member. Trade receivables are non interest bearing and are generally on terms of 7 to 120 days of credit

period.
Trade receivables ageing schedule
Outstanding for following periods from invoice date Total
Particulars Lessthan 6 months 1-2years 2-3years More than
6 months -1 year 3 years

As at 31 March 2023

Undisputed trade receivables — considered

good 132.25 20.85 3.08 0.02 0.15 156.35
Undisputed trade receivables — credit

impaired - - 14.53 0.18 2.66 17.37
Disputed trade receivables — considered

good - - - - 0.09 0.09
Undisputed trade receivables — considered

doubtful 0.59 . - B - 0.59
Disputed trade receivables — credit impaired - - - 0.14 6.08 6.22

132.84 20.85 17.61 0.34 8.98 180.62

As at 31 March 2022

Undisputed trade receivables — considered

good 202.47 10.68 0.44 0.03 0.24 213.86
Undisputed trade receivables — credit

impaired - - - - - -
Disputed trade receivables — considered

good - - - 1.88 1.06 2.94
Undisputed trade receivables — considered

doubtful 0.81 - - - - 0.81
Disputed trade receivables — credit impaired - - 0.14 1.86 10.50 12.50
Total 203.28 10.68 0.58 3.77 11.80 230.11
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

NOTE 11 | CASH AND BANK BALANCES

(At amortised cost)

(% in Crores)

As at

Particulars 31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Cash and cash equivalents

(a) Balances with banks

- Current Accounts 20.45 19.71

- Debit balance in cash credit / overdraft accounts 16.54 5.36
(b) Cheques and drafts on hand 2.39 1.73
(c) Cashonhand 0.05 0.11
(d) Fixed deposits with original maturity less than 3 months (including interest

accrued) 10.08 791
Total 48.51 34.82
Other Bank Balances
(a) Earmarked balances with banks

- Unclaimed dividend accounts 1.67 1.83
(b) Balances with banks:

- Fixed deposits with maturity more than 3 months (including interest accrued) 48.73 18.93

- On margin accounts 52.22 10.23

Total 102.62 30.99

Note: Short term fixed deposits are varying between three months and twelve months, depending on the immediate cash
requirements and earn interest at the respective short term deposit rate. Interest rate is between 4.40% to 8.00%

NOTE 12 | EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

(% in Crores)

Particulars As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

(@) Authorised :

14,80,00,000 (31 March 2022 - 14,80,00,000) Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each. 148.00 148.00
1,00,00,000 (31 March 2022 - 1,00,00,000) Redeemable Cumulative
Non-convertible Preference Shares of ¥ 100 each. 100.00 100.00
248.00 248.00
(b) Issued:
11,17,11,090 (31 March 2022 - 11,17,11,090) Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each . 111.71 111.71
111.71 111.71
(c) Subscribed and paid up:
11,16,95,680 (31 March 2022 - 11,16,95,680) Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each, fully
paid up (The Company has only one class of equity share. Each shareholder is
eligible for one vote per share. The dividend proposed by the Board is subject to
the approval of shareholders except in case of interim dividend. In the event of
liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets
of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to
their shareholding.) 111.69 111.69
Total 111.69 111.69
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

NOTE 12 | EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(d) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year.

(e) Shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the Company:

Opening Balance

Fresh Issue Closing Balance

Equity shares with voting rights

Year ended 31 March 2023

No. of shares 11,16,95,680 - 11,16,95,680
Amount (% in Crores) 111.69 - 111.69
Year ended 31 March 2022

No. of shares 11,16,95,680 - 11,16,95,680
Amount (R in Crores) 111.69 - 111.69

(% in Crores)

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Class of shares / Name of shareholders Number of Percentage Number of  Percentage
shares held shares held

Equity shares with voting rights
(@) Pilani Investment and Industries Corporation Limited 3,69,78,570 33.11%  3,69,78570 3311 %
(b) IGH Holding Private Limited 1,11,50,000 998 %  1,11,50,000 9.98 %
(c) Aditya Marketing And Manufacturing Private Limited

(Merged with Umang Commercial Company Private

Limited) 75,60,900 6.77 % 75,60,900 6.77%

(f)  The Company has not issued any equity shares as bonus or for consideration other than cash and has not bought back
any shares during the period of five years immediately preceding 31 March 2023.

(9

Details of shares held by promoters and promoters group

No. of shares at Change No. of shares at % in total % change

Equity share of ¥ 10 each fully paid up the beginning  during the  the end of the shares  during the
of the year year year year

As at 31 March 2023
Pilani Investment And Industries 3,69,78,570 - 3,69,78,570 33.11% -
Corporation Limited
IGH Holdings Private Limited 1,11,50,000 - 1,11,50,000 9.98% -
Aditya Marketing And Manufacturing
Private Limited(Merged with Umang
Commercial Company Private Limited) 75,60,900 - 75,60,900 6.77% -
Estate of deceased Basant Kumar Birla 1,99,800 - 1,99,800 0.18% -
Prakash Educational Society 1,28,000 - 1,28,000 0.11% -
Birla Educational Institution 44,000 - 44,000 0.04% -
Padmavati Investment Private Limited 16,700 - 16,700 0.01% -
Total 5,60,77,970 - 5,60,77,970 50.21% -
As at 31 March 2022
Pilani Investment And Industries
Corporation Limited 3,69,78,570 - 3,69,78,570 33.11% -
IGH Holdings Private Limited 1,11,50,000 - 1,11,560,000 9.98% -
Aditya Marketing And Manufacturing
Private Limited (Merged with Umang
Commercial Company Private Limited) 75,60,900 - 75,60,900 6.77% -
Estate of deceased Basant Kumar Birla 1,99,800 - 1,99,800 0.18% -
Prakash Educational Society 1,28,000 - 1,28,000 0.11% -
Birla Educational Institution 44,000 - 44,000 0.04% -
Padmavati Investment Private Limited 16,700 - 16,700 0.01% -
Total 5,60,77,970 - 5,60,77,970 50.21% -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

OTHER EQUITY

(% in Crores)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

(a) Securities Premium 643.22 643.22
643.22 643.22

Note :
(i)  Securities premium is used to record the excess of the amount received over the face value of the shares. This reserve will

()

be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Other reserves

(i) Capital Redemption Reserve 100.00 100.00

Note :

Capital redemption reserves was created during the year ended 31 March 2001, on redemption of 10.256% Redeemable
Cumulative Non-convertible Preference Shares privately placed with financial institutions and banks. This reserve will be
utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Dividend distribution made and proposed

(% in Crores)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Cash dividends on equity shares paid during the year

Dividend for the year ended on 31 March 2022: % 4.00 per share (31 March 2021 44.68 1.7
% 1.00 per share)

44.68 11.17

Proposed dividend on equity shares

Proposed dividend for the year ended on 31 March 2023 % 5 per share (31 55.85 44.68
March 2022 % 4.00 per share)

55.85 44.68

Note :

Proposed dividends on equity shares are subject to approval at the annual general meeting and are not recognised as a
liability as at 31 March 2023.

General Reserves

General Reserves is used from time to time to transfer profits from Retained earnings for appropriation purpose. This
reserve will be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Other Comprehensive Income

FVOCI equity investments:

The Company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in equity securities in OCI. These
changes are accumulated within the FVOCI equity investment reserve within equity. The Company transfers amounts
from this reserve to retained earnings when the relevant equity securities are derecognised.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

BORROWINGS

(% in Crores)

Non-Current Current Maturities

Particulars As at As at As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Measured at Amortised Cost

(A) Secured Non Convertible Debentures

1. 2,500 (31 March 2022 - 2,500)
Redeemable Non Convertible
debentures (Repayment due on Feb'
2025, Interest rate as at 31 March
2023 -6.32 % p.a) - 249.78 249.86 -
2. Nil (31 March 2022 - 4,000)
Redeemable Non Convertible
debentures (Repaid in Feb' 2023 -
7.95%p.a) = - = 399.77
(B) Unsecured non convertible
debentures
3. 40,000 (31 March 2022 - Nil)
Unsecured Non Convertible
debentures (Repayment due on Jan
2026 Interest rate as at 31 March
2023 -7.97 % p.a) 399.09 - - -

(C) Term Loan from Bank - Secured

4 Term loan from Axis Bank
(Repayable in 16 instalments, last
instalment falling due on Sep’ 2023) - 57.10 56.23 173.84

5  Term Loan from HDFC Bank
(Repayable in 18 monthly instalments,
last instalment falling due on May’

2023) - 65.94 133.65 35.70
6  Term Loan from Kotak Mahindra
Bank (Repaid during the year) - 9.00 - -

Amount disclosed under the head
Borrowings - Current " (Refer Note 18) = - (439.74) (609.31)

Total 399.09 381.82 = -

Effective rate of Interest : All the term loans are carried at the Interest rate from 6.32% to 8.95%

Note :-

Loans covered in Sr. No. 1

Repayment of loan covered above is due on Feb-2025, however as per the term & conditions of NCD put option shall be
exercisable by debenture holders at the end of 2 (two) years from the date of Allotment. Hence the said NCD has been classified
as current.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

NOTE 14 | BORROWINGS (Continued)

Details of Security:

1. Loans covered in Sr. No. 1:

First pari passu charge on present and future plant and machineries of Birla Century, Pulp and Paper divisions and
excluding Furniture and Fixtures and vehicles of the said divisions.

2. Loans coveredin Sr. No. 4:

First pari passu charge on the present and future movable fixed assets of the Borrower's Birla Century unit at Bharuch
Gujarat and Pulp & Paper unit at Lalkuan, Uttarakhand. Negative lien on the present and future immovable fixed assets of
the Borrower's Birla Century unit at Bharuch Gujarat and Pulp & Paper unit at Lalkuan, Uttarakhand.

There was modification in security details of above term loan where by Freehold land admeasuring 25,323.78 sq. meters
and the Birla Centurion building thereon situated at Worli, Lower Parel Divisions, Mumbai was released during the year.

3. Loan covered in Sr. No. 5 above :

Primary security : First and exclusive charge on land and building and current assets of Birla Vanya project situated at
Shahad, Kalyan.

4. Loans covered in Sr. No. 6 above :

First and exclusive charge through registration of equitable mortgage of the land admeasuring 2,06,557 sqft (excluding
land & FSI for 20,000 sqft of BUA for commercial building to be developed by Birla Estates Pvt Ltd) along with the structure
/ buildings constructed / to be constructed on the said land parcel, including all the existing & future FSI potential loaded /
to be loaded onto the structure constructed / to be constructed there on, along with the development rights for the project,
having a minimum carpet are of 4.12 sq ft, located at Magadi road, Bangalore, land.

5. Loan covenants

Bank loan and NCDs contain certain debt covenants relating to total term loan to tangible net worth, fixed asset coverage
ratio, net debt to equity ratio and interest coverage ratio. The Group is compliant with the said covenants during the year
ended 31 March 2023. The Group has also satisfied all other debt covenants prescribed in the terms of bank loan and NCDs.
The Group has not defaulted in repayment of borrowing and interest thereon.

NOTE 14A| LEASE LIABILITIES

(% in Crores)

Non-Current Current
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Lease liability (Refer Note 45) 19.34 18.46 2.26 2.30
Total 19.34 18.46 2.26 2.30
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

NOTE 15 | OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(% in Crores)

Non-Current Current

Particulars As at As at As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Other Financial Liabilities measured at
amortised cost

(a) Deposits from dealers and agents - - 73.69 53.11
(b) Deposits against rental arrangements 117.33 97.70 58.90 66.16
(c) Interestaccrued - - 10.81 9.63
(d) Unclaimed / unpaid dividends (Refer

Note below (i) = - 1.67 1.83
(e) Creditors for capital supplies / services = - 20.82 14.58
(f) Earnest money on booking of

residential inventory - - 0.55 1.69
(g) Other liabilities 0.49 0.49 8.87 2.08
Total 117.82 98.19 175.31 149.08

Note :-

(i)  Unclaimed dividend amounting to ¥ 0.05 crore (31 March 2022 % 0.05 crore) is pending on account of litigation among
claimants / notices from the tax recovery officer.

(i) Derivative financial instruments:

The Company entered into foreign exchange forward contracts with the intention of hedging foreign exchange risk of
expected sales and purchases, these contracts are not designated as hedge and are measured at fair value through profit
or loss.

Derivative instruments at fair value through profit or loss reflect the negative change in fair value of those foreign exchange
forward contracts that are not designated in hedge relationships, but are, nevertheless, intended to reduce the level of
foreign currency risk for expected sales and purchases.

(i) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (excluding lease liabilities)

(% in Crores)

Particulars As at Cash flow As at
1 April 2022 31 March 2023

Non- current borrowings

Long term borrowings (including current maturities and

interest accrued) 997.66 (150.52) 847.14
Current borrowings

Working capital loans / cash credit from banks 11.16 122.72 133.88
Line of Credit - 35.00 35.00
Pre-shipment, Post-shipment and Export Bills Discounting - 30.00 30.00
facilities

Commercial Papers 313.27 (313.27) -
Total 1322.09 (276.07) 1046.02
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CENTURY TEXTILES AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

NOTE 15 | OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Continued)

(% in Crores)

Particulars As at Cash flow As at
1 April 2021 31 March 2022

Non- current borrowings

Long term borrowings (including current maturities and

interest accrued) 1021.81 (24.15) 997.66

Current borrowings

Working capital loans / cash credit from banks 6.29 4.87 11.16

Pre-shipment, Post-shipment and Export Bills Discounting

facilities 2.19 (2.19) -

Commercial Papers - 313.27 313.27

Total 1030.29 291.80 1322.09

INCOME TAX

Particulars

(@)

Tax expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on continuing
operations

Year Ended
31 March 2023

(% in Crores)

Year Ended
31 March 2022

Current tax

In respect of current year 92.84 55.01

Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods - -
92.84 55.01

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) Credit entitlement = (54.99)
92.84 0.02

Deferred tax

In respect of current year 48.31 84.01

In respect of earlier years 0.55 (33.59)
48.86 50.42

Total income tax expense on continuing operations 141.70 50.44

Tax expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on discontinuing

operations

Current tax

In respect of current year = -

Deferred tax

In respect of current year origination and reversal of temporary differences = 3.05

Total income tax expense on discontinuing operations - 3.05

Net tax expense recognised in the Statement Profit and Loss 141.70 53.49

(b) Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

Deferred tax related to items recognised in other comprehensive income during

the year:

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations 0.64 0.34

Cash flow hedge - 0.21

0.64 0.55
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

NOTE 16 | INCOME TAX (Continued)

(% in Crores)

Year Ended

Particular
articulars 31 March 2023

Year Ended
31 March 2022

Classification of income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

Income taxes related to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 0.64 0.34
Income taxes related to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - 0.21
0.64 0.55
(c) Amounts Recognised directly in Equity - Nil (31 March 2022 - Nil)
(d) Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by
Company'’s tax rate:

Profit/(loss) before tax from continuing operations 406.25 204.60
Income tax expense calculated at 34.944% (31 March 2022 - 34.944%) 141.96 71.50
Income taxable at different tax rates (21.99) -
Effect of income that is exempt from taxation (0.62) -
Effect of expenses that is non-deductible in determining taxable profit 1.59 2.58

Profit taxable at different tax rates for subsidiaries and measurement of deferred
tax @ 25.17% for deferred tax expected to be reversed in new tax regime 4.47 1.00
Others 15.74 8.95
141.15 84.03

Adjustments recognised in the current year in relation to the deferred tax of
prior years (Refer Note ii) 0.55 (33.59)
Adjustment of tax relating to prior periods = -
Income tax expense recognised In profit or loss from continuing operations 141.70 50.44
Profit / (loss) before tax from discontinuing operations - 10.59
Income tax expense calculated at 34.944% - 3.70
Income taxable at different tax rates - (0.65)
Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss from discontinuing operations - 3.05

Note :

(i)  The tax rate used for above deferred tax reconciliation for 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 is 34.944% respectively.

(i) Birla Estates Private Limited (‘BEPL'), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, has assessed the recoverability of
unutilized tax losses as at March 31, 2023 and recognized deferred tax asset amounting to ¥ 48.08 crores (31 March 2022

-%34.07 crores).

(e) The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 :

(% in Crores)

Deferred Tax As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Deferred tax assets 48.08 56.94
Deferred tax liabilities 40.64 -
Net Deferred Tax liability / (asset) (7.44) (56.94)
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CENTURY TEXTILES AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

NOTE 16 | INCOME TAX (Continued)

Movement during the year ended 31
March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Recognised in Recognised in Other

profit and Loss

comprehensive
income

Tax effect of items constituting deferred
tax liabilities

(% in Crores)

(i) Property, plant and equipments,
investment property and real estate

Inventory 603.78 (5.16) - 598.62
(i) Others 40.95 - - 40.95
644.73 (5.16) - 639.57
Tax effect of items constituting deferred
tax assets
(i)  Employee benefits 9.49 0.43 (0.64) 9.28
(i) Expenses allowable for tax purpose
when paid 4.66 0.01 - 4.67
(i) Tax losses 99.47 (30.75) - 68.72
(iv) Interest Income on unwinding of
financial assets 23.14 - - 23.14
(v) Other temporary differences 23.25 10.47 - 33.72
(vi) Upfront royalty 12511 (14.86) - 110.25
285.12 (34.70) (0.64) 249.78
Deferred Tax liability / (asset) 359.60 29.54 0.64 389.78
MAT credit (416.54) 19.32 - (397.22)
Net Deferred Tax liability / (asset) (56.94) 48.86 0.64 (7.44)
(% in Crores)
As at  Recognised in Recognised in Other As at

Movement during the year ended 31
March 2022

31 March 2021

profit and Loss

comprehensive

31 March 2022

income

Tax effect of items constituting deferred
tax liabilities
(i) Property, plant and equipments,

investment property and real estate

Inventory 612.67 (8.89) - 603.78
(i) Others 40.95 - - 40.95

653.62 (8.89) - 644.73

Tax effect of items constituting deferred
tax assets
(i)  Employee benefits 7.61 2.22 (0.34) 9.49
(i) Expenses allowable for tax purpose

when paid 4.54 0.12 - 4.66
(i) Taxlosses 145,57 (46.10) - 99.47
(iv) Interest Income on unwinding of

financial assets 23.14 - - 23.14
(v) Other temporary differences 26.82 (8.57 - 23.25
(vi) Upfront royalty 140.74 (15.03) - 12511
(vii) Cash flow hedge 0.21 - (0.21) -

347.56 (62.36) (0.55) 285.12

Deferred Tax liability / (asset) 306.06 53.47 0.55 359.60
MAT credit (361.55) (54.99) - (416.54)
Net Deferred Tax liability / (asset) (55.49) (1.52) 0.55 (56.94)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

NOTE 17 | OTHER LIABILITIES

(% in Crores)

Non-Current Current

Particulars As at As at As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

(a) Advances received from customers - 1484.49 607.28
(b) Deferred revenue - Government grant

(Refer Note below) 11.63 27.63 = -
(c) Deferred revenue (Refer Note 33) 44287 492.58 52.78 52.22
(d) Statutory dues

- Taxes payable (other than income

taxes) = - 55.04 54.84

- Employee recoveries and employer

contributions = - 2.10 2.36
(e) Other liabilities - - 0.25 0.16
Total 454.50 520.21 1594.66 716.86

Note : Government grant

(% in Crores)

Particulars As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening 27.63 29.09
Received during the year = 0.40
Released to the statement of profit and loss 16.00 1.86
Closing 11.63 27.63

Under the Export Promotion Capital Goods (EPCG) Scheme, the Company received Government grant for the purchase of
certain items of property, plant and equipments. As per the EPCG scheme the Company has an obligation to export up to 6
times of grant amount. As and when the Company fulfils the export obligation, proportionate grant is released to the Statement
of profit and loss (Refer Note 39).
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

NOTE 18 | BORROWINGS - CURRENT

(X in Crores)

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Particulars

Secured borrowings measured at amortised cost.
(a) Loans repayable on demand from banks

Cash credit from banks / Overdraft facility form Banks 133.88 11.16
Pre-shipment, post-shipment and export bills discounting facilities 30.00 -
Line of Credit 35.00 -

Unsecured borrowings measured at amortised cost.
(b) Current maturity of long-term loans:
Current maturity of long-term loans 439.74 609.31
(c) Commercial papers
(Maximum balance outstanding during the year ¥ 500 Crores)
(31 March 2022 % 375 Crores) - 313.27
Total 638.62 933.74

Note:

Nature of security

(i)  Cash credit / Overdraft facility form Banks of ¥ 19.82 Crores (31 March 2022 % 0.50 crores) are secured against a first
and pari passu charge over the current assets (including documents of title to goods/related receivables) and collateral
security on a pari-passu basis over the present and future property plant and equipments (plant and machinery) of Birla
Century (Gujarat), Century Pulp and paper.

(i) Cashcredit/ Overdraft facility form Banks of ¥ 0.19 crores (31 March 2022 % 10.66 crores) from banks are secured against
first pari passu charge on current assets of the Birla Estates Private Limited, both present and future, exclusive mortgage
of land and building situated at Sahad, opposite chemical land, Kalyan and first & exclusive charge on current assets of
the company's Birla Vanya project at Kalyan.

(i) Cash credit / Overdraft facility of ¥ 113.87 crores (31 March 2022 % Nil) & Line of credit from banks are secured against
a first and pari passu charge with other facility by way of registered mortgage on the property, project, future scheduled
receivable of the project and all insurance proceed, both present and future, on security of all rights, title, interest, claims,
benefits, demands under the project documents of both present and future, on the escrow and DSR account of the project
including all monies credited / deposited therein and all investment in respect thereof.

All such sold units of secured project, booking of which are subsequently cancelled by customer shall continue to stand
mortgaged to the lender.

NOTE 19 | TRADE PAYABLES

(% in Crores)

Particulars As at

31 March 2022
Trade payable - Micro and small enterprises (Refer Note 34) 11.88
Trade payable - Other than micro and small enterprises 846.08
Total 857.96
Note :

(@) The above information has been provided as available with the Company to the extent such parties could be identified on
the basis of the information available with the Company regarding the status of suppliers under the MSMED Act.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

NOTE 19 | TRADE PAYABLES (Continued)

(b) Trade payables are non interest bearing and are normally settled on 60-30 days terms. Acceptances are interest bearing
and have an average term of six months. There are no other amounts paid / payable towards interest / principal under the
MSMED.

(c) Trade payables ageing schedule

Outstanding for following periods from invoice date
Particulars Lessthan  1-2years  2-3years  More than Total
1 year 3 years
As at 31 March 2023
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises 19.11 - - - 19.11
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises 702.43 44.32 7.38 12.27 766.40
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises - - - - -
Total 721.54 44.32 7.38 12.27 785.51
As at 31 March 2022
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises 11.88 - - - 11.88
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises 812.19 13.53 10.93 8.99 845.64
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises - - 0.01 0.43 0.44
Total 824.07 13.53 10.94 9.42 857.96
PROVISIONS
(% in Crores)
Non-Current Current
Particulars

(a) Provision for employee benefits

As at
31 March 2023

As at

31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2023

As at

31 March 2022

(i)  Leave entitlement 2.41 1.50 23.59 24.76
(i)  Gratuity (Refer Note 36) 0.07 - 3.65 2.37
2.48 1.50 27.24 27.13

(b) Other Provisions
(i) Disputed matters (Refer Note 37) = - 155.22 154.74
- - 155.22 154.74
Total 2.48 1.50 182.46 181.87
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

NOTE 21 | REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

(% in Crores)

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(a) Sale of products 4531.87 3879.83

(b) Rent from leased properties:

Rent from Investment properties (Refer

Note 4) 124.73 126.45
Rent from other assets (Refer Note 33) 49.98 49.98
174.71

(c) Serviceincome 12.74 13.82
4719.32 4068.36

(d) Other operating revenues :
Export benefits 16.60 14.70
Sale of scrap 12.66 8.78
Insurance and other claims 0.05 0.40
Liabilities no longer required 8.21 12.41
Government grants 16.00 8.60
Renewable energy credits - 1.09
Others 26.81 16.61
80.33 62.59
Total 4799.65 4130.95

NOTE 21A | DISAGGREGATED REVENUE INFORMATION:

(% in Crores)

Particulars Vear Ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Segment
Textile products 950.76 1037.25
Paper and Pulp products 3571.71 2817.79
Real Estates 12.74 13.82
Others (Salt and Chemicals) 9.40 24.79
Total revenue from contracts with customers 4544.61 3893.65
India 4103.66 3235.75
Outside India 440.95 657.90
Total revenue from contracts with customers 4544.61 3893.65

Timing of revenue recognition

Goods transferred at a point in time 4531.87 3879.83
Services transferred over time 12.74 13.82
Total revenue from contracts with customers 4544.61 3893.65
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Year ended 31 March 2023
Reconciliation with segment revenue Textile Pulp and Real Estates Others Total
Paper
Revenue as per Segment 1000.74 3571.71 137.47 9.40 4719.32
Less:
Rent from Investment properties - - (124.73) - (124.73)
Rent from Other assets (49.98) - - - (49.98)
Total Revenue from contracts with customers 950.76 3571.71 12.74 9.40 4544.61
Year ended 31 March 2022
Reconciliation with segment revenue Textile Pulp and Real Estates Others Total
Paper
Revenue as per Segment 1087.23 2817.79 138.55 24.79 4068.36
Less:
Rent from Investment properties - - (126.45) - (126.45)
Rent from Other assets (49.98) - - - (49.98)
Total Revenue from contracts with customers 1037.25 2817.79 13.82 24.79 3893.65
CONTRACT BALANCES
(X in Crores)
Particulars As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Trade Receivables 156.44 216.80
Contract Liabilities (advance received from customers) 1448.05 591.05
Contract assets (brokerage on sale of real estates inventories) 135.02 72.89

Significant changes in the contract assets and the contract liabilities during the year are as follows

(X in Crores)

Year Ended Year Ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Particulars

Contract assets

Opening balance 72.89 24.88
Brokerage paid during the year and not recognized as expenses 62.13 48.01
Closing balance 135.02 72.89
Contract liabilities

Opening balance 591.05 238.97
Advance received during the year and not recognized as revenue 857.00 352.08
Closing balance 1448.05 591.05
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CENTURY TEXTILES AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

NOTE 21D | RECONCILING THE AMOUNT OF REVENUE RECOGNISED IN THE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS WITH THE
CONTRACTED PRICES

Revenue as per contract price 4691.25 4020.42
Adjustments

Discount 146.64 126.77
Revenue from contract with customers 454461 3893.65

REMAINING PERFORMANCE OBLIGATION

In case of residential units, the Company satisfies the performance obligation and recognises revenue at a point in time i.e,,
upon handover of the residential units. Since the said performance obligation is not satisfied as at March 31, 2023, no revenue
has been recognised by the Company on sale of residential units. The Company expects to recognise revenue on sale of
residential units in the following time band:

(X in Crores)

Particulars Vear Ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Time band
More than 3 years 2359.56 1378.69
Less than 3 years 2821.13 1617.95
OTHER INCOME
(% in Crores)
Particulars Year Ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Dividend on FVTPL Investments 2.93 1.56
Dividend on FVTOCI Investments 1.76 1.70
4.69 3.26
Interest Income :
Non current investments at amortised cost 0.57 0.66
On Income tax refund 0.33 0.02
Other interest income 477 5.99
5.67 6.67
Gain on foreign currency fluctuations and translations (net) 0.48 7.09
Provision for interest written back* = 11.37
Surplus on sale of property plant and equipments (net) 0.14 1.61
Management consultancy fees 5.18 4.56
Miscellaneous Income 11.41 8.50
Total 27.52 43.06

#Provision towards interest on expected unfulfillment of export obligation has been written back.
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NOTE 23 | COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

Particulars

(% in Crores)

Year Ended
31 March 2023

Raw material consumed

Year Ended
31 March 2022

Opening stock 160.36 134.00
Add: Purchases 2377.32 1843.33
2537.68 1977.33
Less: Closing stock (252.97) (160.36)
2284.77 1816.97

Dyes, colour and chemicals consumed
Opening stock 17.43 14.42
Add: Purchases 330.83 3563.45
348.26 367.87
Less: Closing stock (9.10) (17.43)
339.16 350.44

Packing materials consumed

Opening stock 8.79 8.60
Add: Purchases 102.87 109.09
111.66 117.69
Less: Closing stock (4.22) (8.79)
107.44 108.90
Total 2731.37 2276.31

NOTE 24 | PURCHASE OF TRADED GOODS

Particulars

(% in Crores)

Year Ended
31 March 2023

Purchase of traded goods

Year Ended
31 March 2022

44.80

223.58
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CENTURY TEXTILES AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

NOTE 25 | CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE

(% in Crores)

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Opening stock :-

Finished goods 94.67 78.81
Work-in-progress 235.40 182.80
Stock-in-trade 0.73 0.95
330.80 262.56
Closing stock :-
Finished goods 146.52 94.67
Work-in-progress 241.62 235.40
Stock-in-trade 1.41 0.73
389.55 330.80
(58.75) (68.24)
Less: Sale of raw materials = (10.14)
Total (58.75) (58.10)

NOTE 26 | EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

(% in Crores)

Particulars Vear Ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Salaries, wages, bonus, etc. 309.75 289.84

Contributions to provident and other funds (Refer Note 36) 16.90 16.03

Gratuity expenses (Refer Note 36) 4.89 4.50

Staff welfare expenses 13.29 13.27

Total 344.83 323.64
FINANCE COST

(% in Crores)

Particulars Year Ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Interest on debts and borrowings 89.74 101.92

Interest on lease liabilities (Refer Note 45) 1.88 1.88

Unwinding of discount and effect of change in discount rate on provisions 9.70 9.16

101.32 112.96

Less: Borrowing costs inventorized (Refer Note below) (47.43) (60.78)

Total 53.89 52.18

Note :

The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing cost to be capitalised and inventorized is the weighted
average interest rate applicable to the entity's general borrowings during the year i.e. 8.00% (31 March 2022 8.00%)
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NOTE 28 | DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES

(% in Crores)

Particulars Year Ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Depreciation of property plant and equipments (Refer Note 3) 192.19 195.10
Depreciation on Investment properties (Refer Note 4) 32.49 33.54
Amortization of Intangible assets (Refer Note 5) 2.40 2.02
Total 227.08 230.66

NOTE 29 | OTHER EXPENSES

(% in Crores)

Particulars Year Ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Consumption of stores and spares 91.31 91.44
Job work charges 21.46 19.28
Power, fuel and water 680.61 485.50
Buildings repairs 32.12 2515
Machinery repairs 29.72 20.47
Rent 4.00 2.27
Rates and taxes 15.93 156.62
Insurance 23.40 21.08
Freight, forwarding, octroi, etc. 99.17 4791
Advertisement and publicity 32.60 28.36
Commission 9.77 12.62
Brokerage, discounts, incentives etc. 3.92 3.86
Commission to Non Executive Directors 2.00 2.00
Director's fees and travelling expenses 0.20 0.10
Donations = 2.00
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 17.64 1.67
Miscellaneous expenses 146.22 141.78
Total 1210.07 921.01
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CENTURY TEXTILES AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

HEDGING ACTIVITIES AND DERIVATIVES

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments

The Group uses foreign currency denominated borrowings and foreign exchange forward contracts to manage some of its
transaction exposures. The foreign exchange forward contracts are not designated as cash flow hedges and are entered into
for periods consistent with foreign currency exposure of the underlying transactions, generally from 1 to 12 months.

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments

Cash flow hedges

Foreign currency risk:

Foreign exchange forward contracts are designated as hedging instruments in cash flow hedges against forecast sales /
purchases in US dollars. This forecast transactions are highly probable since purchase order already issued / projection of
counter party available with the Company and hence expected to be utilised in near term. The foreign exchange contract
balances vary with the level of expected foreign currency sales / purchases and changes in foreign exchange forward rate. The
long term swap by way of foreign currency sales has been done on the basis of historical business with buyers and comprises
50% of projected sales.

[31 ] EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS):

Year Ended

(% in Crores)

Year Ended

Particulars ARVCIRLE] 31 March 2022

a) For Continuing Operations
Profit after tax from continuing operations 264.55 154.16
Add: Loss attributable to Non-Controlling Interest 7.33 4.83
Profit attributable to equity shareholders for basic & diluted EPS 271.88 158.99
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic & diluted EPS 11,16,95,680 11,16,95,680
Basic & diluted earnings per equity share of ¥ 10 each (31 March 2022 % 10 24.34 14.23
each) (in Rupees)

b) For Discontinued operations
Profit attributable to equity shareholders for basic & diluted EPS = 7.54
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic & diluted EPS 11,16,95,680 11,16,95,680
Basic & diluted earnings per equity share of ¥ 10 each (31 March 2022 % 10 - 0.68
each) (in Rupees)

¢) For Continuing & Discontinued operations
Profit attributable to equity shareholders for basic & diluted EPS 271.88 166.53
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic & diluted EPS 11,16,95,680 11,16,95,680
Basic & diluted earnings per equity share of ¥ 10 each (31 March 2022 % 10 24.34 14.91
each) (in Rupees)

32 Revenue expenditure on research and development activities relating to Government recognised in-house research

and development laboratories incurred and charged out during the year through the natural heads of account,

aggregate ¥ 4.35 crores (31 March 2022: % 3.83 crores).
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33

During the financial year 2017-18, the Group had entered into an agreement with Grasim Industries Limited (‘GIL")
granting right to manage and operate the group's Viscose Filament Yarn (‘VFY') business, which is part of Textile
segment, for a duration of 15 years commencing from February 1, 2018. As a part of consideration, GIL has paid an
upfront Royalty of ¥ 605.00 crores. In addition GIL has also paid the carrying value of net working capital and the
interest free security deposit of ¥ 200.00 crores which is repayable after 15 years. With effect from February 1, 2018, GIL
have right to use the VFY business assets including its intangible assets for a period of 15 years from the above date.
The Group is recognizing royalty income over the period of 15 years.

Pursuant to the agreement, GIL shall incur all capital expenditure and commitments involving capital expenditure as may
be necessary for the proper, optimum and profitable operation of the VFY Business. In this regard, Group has agreed that
allimprovement / capital expenditure done by GIL during the tenure of agreement will be transferred to the Group, at such
fair value as may be agreed between the Group and GIL.

TRADE PAYABLES

(0)

(if)

%19.11 Crore (31 March 2022 % 11.88 Crore) due to micro and small enterprises registered under the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) There are no other amounts paid / payable towards interest /
principal under the MSMED; and

The above information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of the information
available with the Group regarding the status of suppliers under the MSMED Act

35 | DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Yarn and Denim division (sold during the previous year)

During the previous year ended 31 March 2022, the Group has sold all the assets of its Yarn and Denim division ("Y&D') to a third
party for a consideration of ¥ 62.00 crore and has recognised a gain of ¥ 17.63 crore net of provision for termination benefits
and other restructuring costs.

i)

i)

Gain on Sale of Yarn & Denim division

(% in Crores)

Particulars 31 March 2022
Sale consideration 62.00
Less:

Sale related expenses 12.78
Net asset / (liabilities) of demerged undertaking 2.45
Additional liabilities recognised pertaining to demerged undertaking 34.04
Gain on sale of Yarn & Denim Division 17.63

The Results of Yarn & Denim Division upto July 14, 2021

(% in Crores)

Particulars 31 March 2022

Revenue including other income -

Expenses (7.04)
Loss before income tax (7.04)
Income tax expense / (credit) (2.46)
Loss after income tax (4.58)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the holding Company has transferred its leasehold land in Gujarat to Grasim Industries
Limited for a consideration of ¥ 215.85 Crores resulting in a net gain of ¥ 134.21 Crores as an exceptional item after adjusting
non-usage charges amounting to ¥ 21.64 Crores and transfer fees amounting to ¥ 37.52 Crores paid to Gujarat Industrial
Development Corporation. Further, tax on such gain amounting to ¥ 25.64 Crores is included in the current tax for the year.

DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO - “EMPLOYEE BENEFITS"

(a) Defined Contribution Plans:

The Group's contribution to Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund aggregating ¥ 8.61 Crores (31 March 2022: ¥ 7.02
Crores) has been recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss under the head Employee Benefits Expense.

(b) Defined Benefit Plans:

(i) Gratuity

The Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan (funded). The Group's defined benefit gratuity plan is a final salary
plan for employees, which requires contributions to be made to a separately administered fund. The gratuity plan is
governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the act, employee who has completed five years of service is
entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member's length of service and salary at
retirement age. The fund has the form of a trust and it is governed by the Board of Trustees, which consists of an
equal number of employer and employee representatives. The Board of Trustees is responsible for the administration
of the plan assets and for the definition of the investment strategy.

Each year, the Board of Trustees reviews the level of funding in the gratuity plan. Such a review includes the asset-
liability matching strategy and investment risk management policy. This includes employing the use of annuities
and longevity swaps to manage the risks. The Board of Trustees decides its contribution based on the results of this
annual review. Generally, it aims to have a portfolio mix of equity instruments, property and debt instruments. The
Board of Trustees aim to keep annual contributions relatively stable at a level such that no plan deficits (based on
valuation performed) will arise.

The significant actuarial assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

(% in Crores)

Valuation as at

Particulars

Employee Attrition rate 2% to 3% 2% to 5%
Discount rate 7.40% 6.80%
Expected rate(s) of salary increase 3% to 6% 3% t0 6%

Defined benefit plans — as per actuarial valuation on 31 March 2023

(% in Crores)
Funded Plan
Particulars Gratuity

I. 1 Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Service Cost:

Current Service Cost 4.81 4.60
Net interest expense 0.08 (0.10)
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in Statement

of Profit and Loss 4.89 4.50
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DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO - “EMPLOYEE BENEFITS" (Continued)

(% in Crores)

Particulars

Funded Plan

Gratuity

2  Included in Other Comprehensive Income

31 March 2022

Remeasurement gain 0.22 0.02
Return on plan assets 0.60 0.95
Remeasurement gain on defined benefit plans 0.82 0.97
Il.  Net Asset/(Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet
1. Present value of defined benefit obligation 55.93 56.02
2. Fair value of plan assets 53.03 53.65
Net Asset/(Liability) (2.89) (2.37)
Reflected in balance sheet as under
Other Current Assets - Gratuity - plan asset 0.83 -
Current Provisions - Gratuity (3.65) (2.37)
Non-Current Provisions - Gratuity (0.07) -
(2.89) (2.37)
lll. Change in the obligation during the year
1. Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of
the year 56.02 54.52
2. Liability to be Transferred in = -
Expenses Recognised in Profit and Loss Account:
- Current Service Cost 4.89 4.50
- Interest Expense 363 3.46
4. Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Remeasurement gains / (losses):
i.  Financial Assumptions (1.77) (0.64)
ii.  Experience Adjustments 1.55 0.62
Benefit payments (8.29) (12.12)
6. Transferin/ (out) = 5.68
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 55.93 56.02
IV. Change in fair value of assets during the year
1. Fairvalue of plan assets at the beginning of the year 53.65 55.25
2. Expenses Recognised in Profit and Loss Account
- Expected return on plan assets 3.47 3.46
3. Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Remeasurement gains / (losses)
- Actual Return on plan assets in excess of the expected return 0.60 0.95
4. Contributions by employer (including benefit payments
recoverable) 3.39 6.83
5. Benefit payments (8.07) (12.84)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 53.03 53.65

Expected Contribution during next Annual reporting period % 3.28 crores (31 March 2022 % 3.82 Crores)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO - “EMPLOYEE BENEFITS" (Continued)

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

(X In Crores)

Impact on defined benefit

o . Changes in obligation

Principal assumption . : :
assumption Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption
Discount rate 31-Mar-23 1% (2.68) 3.03
31-Mar-22 1% (3.01) 3.40
Salary growth rate 31-Mar-23 1% 3.01 (2.70)
31-Mar-22 1% 3.34 (3.03)
Withdrawal rate 31-Mar-23 1% 0.43 (0.49)
31-Mar-22 1% (1.55) 1.01

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation for the next 10 years (Undiscounted amount) :

(X in Crores)

Particulars As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Within 1 year 8.36 7.42
1-2year 5.85 7.32
2 - 3year 6.84 5.54
3 -4 year 5.70 6.32
4 -5vyear 5.96 573
Above b years 21.73 22.76
54.44 55.09

The fair value of Group's plan asset by category are as follows:
(% in Crores)
Asset category As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Cash and cash equivalents 0.10 0.10
Debt instruments (quoted) 51.32 53.29
Equity instruments (quoted) 0.22 0.24
Deposits with Insurance companies 1.39 0.02
Total 53.03 53.65

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at 31 March 2023 is 8.30 years (31 March 2022

11.48 years)
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DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO - “"EMPLOYEE BENEFITS" (Continued)
(ii) Provident Fund

In case of certain employees, the Provident fund contribution is made to trusts administered by the Group. In terms
of guidance note issued by the Institute of Actuaries of India, the Actuary has provided a valuation of Provident fund
liability based on the assumptions listed and determined that there is no shortfall as at 31 March 2023.

The assumptions used in determining the present value of obligation of the interest rate guarantee under deterministic
approach are:

(% in Crores)

Particulars Asat As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Guaranteed interest rate 8.156% 8.10%
Discount rate for the remaining term to maturity of interest portfolio 8.50% 8.79%
Contribution during the year 712 7.99

PROVISION FOR DISPUTED MATTERS

Provision for disputed matters in respect of known contractual risks, litigation cases and pending assessments in respect of
taxes, duties and other levies / claims, the actual outflow of which will depend on the outcome of the respective proceedings.

The movements in the above account are summarized below:-

(% in Crores)

As at Amounts Amounts As at

S Nature of liabilit 31 March 2022 provided for utilised / [EAR Y ET(S WIpE]
No. y during the year written back
during the year

1 Water Charges 95.32 1.80 1.79 95.33

2 Octroi Duty 38.54 - - 38.54

3 Others 20.88 0.55 0.08 21.35

Total 154.74 2.35 1.87 155.22

(% in Crores)

1 April 2021 Amounts Amounts As at

S Nature of liabilit provided for utilised/ 31 March 2022
No. y during the year written back
during the year

1 Water Charges 105.90 315 13.73 95.32

2 Octroi Duty 38.54 - - 38.54

3 Towards Employee Benefit 25.49 - 25.49 -

4 Others 20.34 0.54 - 20.88

Total 190.27 3.69 39.22 154.74
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CENTURY TEXTILES AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(i) Contingent liabilities (to the extent not provided for)

(% in Crores)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Contingent liabilities - Continuing Operations

(@) () Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts in respect of :

- Custom Duty and Excise Duty 11.22 11.01
- Sales Tax and Entry Tax 11.00 10.27
- Others 6.29 6.05

(i) Claims not acknowledged as debts jointly with other members of
“Business Consortium of Companies” in which the Group had an
interest (proportionate) 26.51 24.86

(b) Disputed income tax matters under appeal 133.34 115.44

(c) The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits
during employment and post-employment benefits received Presidential
assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of
India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not
been notified and the final rules/interpretation have not yet been issued.
The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into
effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes
effective. Based on a preliminary assessment, the entity believes the
impact of the change will not be significant.

Amount not Amount not
determinable determinable

The amounts shown above represents the best possible estimates arrived at on the basis of available information. The
uncertainties are dependent on the outcome of the different legal processes. The timing of future cash flows will be
determinable only on receipt of judgments / decisions pending with various forums/authorities. The Group does not
expect any reimbursements against the above.

COMMITMENTS

(% in Crores)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Capital commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not
provided for (Net of Advances) 50.56 102.20

Other Commitments

The Group has imported capital goods under the Export promotion capital goods
scheme, of the Government of India, at concessional rates of duty on an undertaking
to fulfill quantified exports in the future years 74.70 165.78

|m| Leading with purpose, growing with responsibility.



Ei> Company Overview

> Statutory Reports

) Financial Statements

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

1 Relationships :

(@) Where significant influence exists :

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

M/s Pilani Investment and Industries Corporation Limited (As a Shareholder of the Company directly & indirectly)

Where Joint control exists :

Birla Advanced Knits Private Limited (Joint Venture)

Key Management Personnel (KMP) :

Managing Director :
Shri J. C. Laddha (upto 11.08.2022)
Shri R. K. Dalmia (w.e.f.12.08.2022)

Whole-time Director :
Shri R. K. Dalmia (upto 11.08.2022)

Non Executive Directors

Shri Kumar Mangalam Birla
Smt. Rajashree Birla

Shri Rajan A Dalal

Shri Yazdi P Dandiwala

Shri Sohanlal Kundanmal Jain

Smt. Preeti Vyas

Shri J. C. Laddha (From 12.08.2022 to 28.09.2022)

Other Related Parties (Company Managed Funds)

(i) Pension & Provident Fund of Century Textiles & Industries Limited

- Pension And Provident Fund Of Century Textiles And Industries Limited

(ii) Gratuity Fund of Century Textiles & Industries Limited

- Century Textiles And Industries Limited Employees Gratuity Fund

(iii) Superannuation Fund of Century Textiles & Industries Limited

- Century Textiles And Industries Limited (Textiles Division) Superannuation Scheme

(iv) CTIL Employee Welfare Trust

Other Related Parties
Industry House Ltd.
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CENTURY TEXTILES AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE (Continued)

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the
relevant financial period are disclosed below:

(% in Crores)

Transactions With Related For the Associates Where Joint KMP & Company Other
Parties year ended (a) control Directors of Managed Related
exists (b) the Company Funds (d)  Parties

(c) (e)

Nature of transactions with
Related Parties

Pension & Provident fund of 31-Mar-23 - - - 712 -
Etedrjtury Textiles & Industries 31-Mar-22 ) ) ) 799 )
Century Textiles & Industries 31-Mar-23 - - - 3.40 -
Ltd. Employee Gratuity Fund 31-Mar-22 B B B 6.82 )
Century Textiles & Industries 31-Mar-23 - - - 0.37 -
étudbe(rTaer:(r:itlsttiSriniSS(ijwr;)me 31-Mar-22 _ _ _ 042 _
Remuneration to Whole time 31-Mar-23 - - 6.98 - -
Director & Managing Director 31-Mar-22 ) ) 734 ) .
Sitting fees to independent and  31-Mar-23 - - 0.20 - -
non executive directors 31-Mar-22 B B 010 B )
Commission to non whole time  31-Mar-23 - - 2.00 - -
directors 31-Mar-22 - - 2.00 - -
Sale of Goods 31-Mar-23 - 1.02 - - -

31-Mar-22 - - - - -
Other Transactions (Income) 31-Mar-23 - 1.69 - - -

31-Mar-22 - 0.77 - - -
Purchase of Goods 31-Mar-23 - 0.36 - - -

31-Mar-22 - - - - -
Other Transactions (Expenses)  31-Mar-23 14.79 0.23 - - 2.37

31-Mar-22 3.70 - - - 0.47
Investment 31-Mar-23 - 10.00 - - -

31-Mar-22 - 15.00 - - -
Reimbursement of Expenses 31-Mar-23 - - - - -
(income) 31-Mar-22 - 012 - - -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE (Continued)

(X in Crores)

Balances Receivable / Balance Associates Where Joint KMP & Company Other
(Payable) with Related Parties as at (a) control Directors of Managed Related
exists (b) the Company Funds (d)  Parties
(c) (e)
Pension & Provident fund of 31-Mar-23 - - - (0.57) -
Century Textiles & Industries 31-Mar-22 B B ) (0.66) B
Ltd. - Payable
Commission to non whole time  31-Mar-23 - - (2.00) - -
directors - Payable 31-Mar-22 B B (2.00) ) B
Sale of Goods - Receivable 31-Mar-23 - 1.08 - - -
31-Mar-22 - - - - -
Other Transactions (Income) - 31-Mar-23 - 1.51 - - -
Receivable 31-Mar-22 ) ) ) ) )
Purchase of Goods - Payable 31-Mar-23 - (0.37) - - -
31-Mar-22 - - - - -
Other Transactions (Expenses)  31-Mar-23 - (0.23) - - (2.14)
- Payable 31-Mar-22 - - - - (002
Investment - Receivable 31-Mar-23 - 25.00 - - 26.79
31-Mar-22 - 15.00 - - 27.38
Deposit 31-Mar-23 - (15.00) - - -
31-Mar-22 - - - - -

* Key Managerial Personnel are entitled to post-employment benefits and other long term employee benefits
recognised as per Ind AS 19 - 'Employee Benefits' in the financial statements. As these employee benefits are lump
sum amounts provided on the basis of actuarial valuation, the same is included above on payment basis.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Adjustments & Eliminations:

Finance income and costs, and fair value gains and losses on financial assets are not allocated to individual segments as the
underlying instruments are managed on a group basis.

Current taxes, deferred taxes and certain financial assets and liabilities are not allocated to those segments as they are also
managed on a group basis.

Capital expenditure consists of additions of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment properties.

B. Reconciliation of profit
(% in Crores)

Particulars Year Ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Segment profit [A] 365.17 291.56
Unallocable Income/(Expense)[B]:
Employee Benefit Expense (18.04) (15.09)
Depreciation & Amortisation Expense (0.88) (0.38)
Other Expense (39.40) (35.12)
Other Income 165.14 15.94
Total 96.82 (34.65)
Finance Cost [C] (53.89) (52.18)
Share of Loss of Joint Venture [D] (1.84) (0.13)
Profit before tax from Continuing Operations [A+B+C+D] 406.25 204.60
Add/(Less): Taxes
Income Tax Charge (141.70) (50.44)
Profit after tax from continuing operations 264.55 154.16
Profit from Discontinued Operations - 10.59
Add/(Less): Taxes
Income Tax Charge - (3.05)
Profit after tax from discontinuing Operations - 7.54
Profit for the year 264.55 161.70

C. Reconciliation of Assets & Liabilities

(% in Crores)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

I (A) Segment Operating Assets 7892.76 7049.43
Unallocated Assets

(B) Non-current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipments 38.25 35.73
Financial Assets

Non-Current Investments 22477 278.06
Other financial assets 10.09 48.49
Deferred Tax Assets 48.08 56.94
Non Current Tax 68.74 48.69
Other Non Current Assets 1.03 1.08
Total Non-Current Assets (B) 390.96 468.99
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CENTURY TEXTILES AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(% in Crores)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

(C) Current Assets

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 48.51 34.82
Bank balances other than above cash & cash equivalents 100.62 30.99
Investments 3.00 131.00
Others 10.12 8.25
Other Current Assets 5.67 15.36
Total Current Assets (C) 167.92 220.42
Total Unallocated Assets (B+C) 558.88 689.41
TOTAL ASSETS (A+B +C) 8451.64 7738.84
Il (A) Segment Operating Liabilities 3434.51 2469.27

Unallocated Liabilities

(B) Non-Current Liabilities

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 399.09 381.82
Lease Liabilities 19.34 18.46
Deferred Tax Liability 40.64 -
Total Non-Current Liabilities (B) 459.07 400.28

(C) Current Liabilities

Financial Liabilities

Current Borrowings 459.66 926.09
Lease Liabilities 2.26 2.30
Cash Credit Facilities = 7.65
461.92 936.04

Trade Payables 37.34 39.48
Other Financial Liabilities 8.81 8.37
Other Current Liabilities 8.79 5.41
Provisions 2.25 3.14
Total Current Liabilities (C) 519.11 992.44
Total Unallocated Liabilities (B+C) 978.18 1,392.72
Total LIABILITIES (A+B+C) 4412.69 3861.99
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
D. Secondary Segment

(% in Crores)

I Geographic information Year Ended Year Ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Revenue from external customers

India 4278.38 3410.36
Outside India 440.94 657.90
Total revenue from continuing operations 4719.32 4068.36

(% in Crores)

Il Non-current operating assets: As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

India 4142.02 4269.42
Outside India = -
Total 4142.02 4269.42

Non-current assets for this purpose consist of property, plant and equipment, investment properties and intangible
assets.

E. Revenue from major products and services

The following is an analysis of the Company revenue from continuing operations from its major products and services:

(% in Crores)

Sale of Products Year Ended Year Ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Cotton Fabric & Yarn 950.76 1087.23
Pulp & Paper (including Paper Board / Straw Board) 3571.71 2817.79
Others 9.40 24.79
Rental income including common area maintenance charges 187.45 138.55
Total 4719.32 4068.36

Composition of the business segment

Name of the Segment Types of products / services Comprises of :

a. Textiles Yarn, Fabric, leasing of Viscose filament yarn & Tyre yarn plant (Yarn and Denim included in
Discontinued Operations and sold during the previous year)

b.  Pulp and Paper Pulp, writing & printing paper, tissue paper and multilayer packaging board

c. Real Estate Leased Properties and real estate development

d. Others Salt works and Chemicals

F. TheBoard of Directors monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment.

G. No single customer contributed 10% or more to the Company's revenue for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March
2022

H. Theaccounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies described in note 2A.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

For the purpose of the Group's capital management, equity includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity
reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Group. The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to maximize
the shareholder value. The Group's Capital Management objectives are to maintain equity including all reserves to protect
economic viability and to finance any growth opportunities that may be available in future so as to maximize shareholders'
value. The Group is monitoring capital using debt equity ratio as its base which is debt to equity. The Group's policy is to keep
debt equity ratio below two and infuse capital if and when required through issue of new shares and/or better operational
results and efficient working capital management.

Debt-to-equity ratio are as follows:

(% in Crores)

Particulars m 31 March 2022

Debt (including lease liability) (A) 1059.31 1336.33
Equity (B) 4038.95 3876.85
Debt to Equity Ratio (A / B) 0.26 0.34

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Group's principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The
Group's principal financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly
from its operations. The Group also holds FVTOCI investments and enters into derivative transactions.

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's senior management oversees the risk
management. The Group's senior management provides assurance that the Group's financial risk activities are governed by
appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the
Group's policies and risk objectives. All derivative activities for risk management purposes are carried out by teams that have
the appropriate skills, experience and supervision. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks, which are summarised below.

A. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counter party will not meet it obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract leading
to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk mainly from trade receivables and other financial assets. The group
only deals with parties which has good credit ratings / worthiness based on Group's internal assessment.

The Group has divided parties in two grades based on their performance.

Good: parties with a positive external rating (if available) and stable financial position with no past default is considered
in this category.

Doubtful: parties where the Group doesn't have information on their financial position or has past trend of default are
considered under this category.

The Group has not acquired any credit impaired asset. There was no modification in any financial assets.

(i) Trade receivables

Customer credit is managed by each business division subject to the Group's established policy procedures and
control related to customer credit risk management.

Export customers are mainly against Letter of Credit and/or insurance cover on export outstanding is also taken.
Generally deposits are taken from domestic debtors. Apart from deposit there is a commission agent area wise. In
case any customer defaults the amount is first recovered from deposits, then from the agent's commission. Each
outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored and if outstanding is above due date the further shipments
are controlled and can only be released if there is a proper justification. The carrying amount and fair value of security
deposit amounts to ¥73.69 crores (31 March 2022: % 53.11 crores) as it is payable on demand.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK (Continued)

The Group evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located
in several jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independent markets and their credit worthiness are
monitored at periodical intervals. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of
each class of financial assets.

The Group has recognised loss allowance provision on trade receivables amounting to ¥ 14.49 Crs during the year
(31 March 2022 % 1.60 Crs) as there was no reasonable expectations of recovery and were outstanding for more than
360 days from becoming due.

(% in Crores)

Less Then More Then
As at 31 March 2023 180 Days 180 Days
Expected loss rate 0.00% 50.61%
Gross carrying amount 132.84 47.78
Loss allowance provision - 24.18

(% in Crores)

Less Then More Then
As at 31 March 2022 180 Days 180 Days
Expected loss rate 0.00% 59.18%
Gross carrying amount 207.62 22.49
Loss allowance provision - 13.31

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision for Trade Receivables

(% in Crores)

Particulars m 31 March 2022

Balance as at beginning of the year 13.31 11.71
On receivables originated in the year 14.49 1.60
Amounts recovered / written back during the year (3.62) -
Balance at end of the year (Continuing Operations) 24.18 13.31

(ii) Other Financial Assets

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by Group's treasury department in accordance with the Group
policy. Investment of surplus funds are made only in approved Mutual Funds and that too in liquid funds. As soon
as the fund reaches to a reasonable level the Group repay its working capital borrowing by redeeming the liquid
fund. The other financial assets are from various forum of Government authorities and are released by Government
authorities on completion of relevant terms and conditions for the release of outstanding.

B. MARKET RISK
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices. Market risk comprises of three types of risks — interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk in a
fluctuating market environment. Financial instrument affected by market risks includes loans and borrowings, deposits,
FVTOCI Investments, derivatives and other financials assets.

The Group has designed risk management frame work to control various risks effectively to achieve the business
objectives. This includes identification of risk, its assessment, control and monitoring at timely intervals.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK (Continued)

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relates to the outstanding balance as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March
2022

The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating interest
rates of the debt and derivatives and the proportion of financial instruments in foreign currencies are all constant in place
at 31 March 2023.

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is
based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022

(i) Currency Risk

This is the risk that the Group may suffer losses as a result of adverse exchange rate movement during the relevant
period. As a policy, Group is covering all foreign exchange risk on account of import and loans so that Group may
not be put to any loss situation due to adverse fluctuations in currency rates. There is periodical review of foreign
exchange transactions and hedging by the Group's executives.

Foreign Currency Sensitivity

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD, EUR and GBP exchange
rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the Group's profit before tax is due to changes in the
fair value of monetary assets and liabilities including non-designated foreign currency derivatives. The Group
evaluates exchange rate exposure arising from foreign currency transactions. The Group follows established risk
management policies and standard operating procedures. The Group's exposure to foreign currency changes for all
other currencies is not material.

(% in crores)

Currency Change in rate Effect on profit
before tax
31 March 2023 uSDh +5% 2.63
usD -5% (2.63)
EUR +5% (0.03)
EUR -5% 0.03
31 March 2022 usD +5% (5.57)
uSD -5% 557
EUR +5% (0.61)
EUR -5% 0.61
Outstanding foreign currency exposures As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Foreign % In crore Foreign Z In crore
Currency Currency
(in millions) (in millions)

Trade Receivables

UsD 2.30 18.87 0.39 2.71
Trade Payables

UsD 7.16 58.83 21.95 165.81
Euro 0.07 0.61 1.42 12.13
Others 0.03 0.23 0.02 0.15
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK (Continued)

The following table gives details in respect of outstanding foreign exchange forward contracts

Forward Contracts Buy / Sell 31 March 2023
Foreign Currency  Nominal value Fair value
(In millions) (% In Crores) (% In Crores)
In USD Buy 11.22 92.53 0.31
Forward Contracts Buy / Sell 31 March 2022
Foreign Currency Nominal value Fair value
(In millions) (% In Crores) (% In Crores)
In USD Buy 6.80 51.65 0.12

(ii) Interest rate risk

The Group manages interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate of interest on loans
and borrowings. To manage this, Group has issued fixed rate bonds and loans taken from banks are linked to MCLR
rate of the bank, which are variable.

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of
loans and borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the Group's profit before tax is affected through
the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

(% in crores)

Currency Increase / decrease Effect on profit

in basis points before tax

31 March 2023 INR +50 (1.94)
INR -50 1.94

31 March 2022 INR +50 (1.76)
INR -50 1.76

(R in crores)

Particulars Total Floating rate Fixed rate

Borrowings Borrowings Borrowings
INR 1037.71 388.76 648.95
Total as at 31 March 2023 1037.71 388.76 648.95
INR 1315.56 362.74 962.82
Total as at 31 March 2022 1315.56 352.74 962.82

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable
market environment, showing a significantly higher volatility than in prior years.

(i) Equity Price Risk
The Group is exposed to equity price risks arising from equity investments. Equity investments are held for strategic
rather than trading purposes. The Group does not actively trade these investments.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK (Continued)
C. LIQUIDITY RISK

(i) Liquidity risk management
The Group manages liquidity risk by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows on daily, monthly and
yearly basis. The Group ensures that there is a free credit limit available at the start of the year which is sufficient
for repayments getting due in the ensuing year. Loan arrangements, credit limits with various banks including
working capital and monitoring of operational and working capital issues are always kept in mind for better liquidity
management

(ii) Maturities of financial liabilities

The following tables detail the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with
agreed repayment periods. The amount disclosed in the tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.

To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curves at
the end of the reporting period. The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Group may be
required to pay.

(% in Crores)

As at 31 March 2023 On Lessthan 1-3Years 3 Yearsto 5 years Total
Demand 1 Year 5 Years and above

Non Derivative financial instruments

Long term borrowings (including current
maturities of long-term debt) - 365.43 486.56 - - 851.99

Short term borrowings

Cash credit facilities/ working

capital loan 133.88 - - - - 133.88

Pre-shipment, post-shipment

facilities - 30.00 - - - 30.00

Line of credit - 35.00 - B - 35.00
Trade payables

Trade payables - micro and small
enterprises - 19.11 - - - 19.11

Trade payables - other than micro
and small enterprises - 766.40 - - - 766.40

Other financial liabilities

Deposits from dealers and agents 73.69 - - - - 73.69

Deposits against rental

arrangements - 66.83 23.99 2.65 200.00 293.47

Other interest accrued - 10.81 - - - 10.81

Unclaimed / unpaid dividends = 1.67 B - - 1.67

Creditors for capital supplies /

services - 20.82 - - - 20.82

Earnest money on booking of

residential inventory 0.55 - - - - 0.55

Other current liabilities . 8.87 0.49 - - 9.36
Total 208.12 1324.94 511.04 2.65 200.00 2246.75
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK (Continued)

(X in Crores)

As at 31 March 2022 On Lessthan 1-3Years 3 Yearsto 5 years Total
Demand 1 Year 5 Years and above

Non Derivative financial instruments

Long term borrowings - 679.81 407.61 7.43 - 1,094.85
Short term borrowings

Cash credit facilities/ working

capital loan 11.16 - - - - 11.16

Commercial paper - 315.00 - - - 315.00
Trade payables

Trade payables - micro and small

enterprises - 11.88 - - - 11.88

Trade payables - other than micro

and small enterprises - 846.08 - - - 846.08
Other financial liabilities

Deposits from dealers and agents 53.11 - - - - 53.11

Deposits against rental

arrangements - 5477 20.40 - 200.00 27517

Other Interest accrued - 9.63 - - - 9.63

Unclaimed / unpaid dividends - 1.83 - - - 1.83

Creditors for capital supplies /

services - 14.58 - - - 14.58

Earnest money on booking of

residential inventory 1.69 - - - - 1.69

Other current liabilities - 2.08 0.49 - - 2.57
Total 65.96 1935.66 428.50 7.43 200.00 2637.55

(iii) Maturities of financial assets

The following table details the Group's expected maturity for its non-derivative financial assets. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial assets including interest that will be
earned on those assets. The inclusion of information on non-derivative financial assets is necessary in order to
understand the Group's liquidity risk management as the liquidity is managed on a net asset and liability basis.
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CENTURY TEXTILES AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK (Continued)

(X in Crores)

As at 31 March 2023 On Lessthan 1-3Years 3 Yearsto 5 years Total
Demand 1 Year 5 Years and above

Non Derivative financial instruments

Trade receivables - 156.44 - - - 156.44

Other bank balances 1.67 100.95 - - - 102.62

Other financial assets

Security deposits - 1.55 - 6.53 - 8.08
Interest subsidy - 10.45 - - - 10.45
Unbilled revenue - 1.50 1.87 - - 3.37
Bank deposit more than 12 months - - 10.09 - - 10.09
Others - 2.59 - - - 2.59
Finance lease receivables - - 1.48 - - 1.48
Total 1.67 273.48 13.44 6.53 - 295.12

(X in Crores)

As at 31 March 2022 On Lessthan 1-3Years 3 Yearsto 5 years Total
Demand 1 Year 5 Years and above

Non Derivative financial instruments

Trade receivables - 216.80 - - - 216.80

Other bank balances 1.83 77.65 - - - 79.48

Other financial assets

Security deposits - 0.67 - 7.27 - 7.94
Interest subsidy - 5.42 - - - 5.42
Unbilled Revenue - 1.04 2.23 - - 3.27
Bank deposit more than 12 months - - 48.49 - - 48.49
Others - 5.57 017 - - 574
Finance lease receivables - 0.48 - - - 0.48
Total 1.83 308.11 50.89 7.27 - 368.10
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

31 March 2023

(% in Crores)

31 March 2022

Particulars Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value
value value
Financial assets
Financial assets measured at Fair value through OCI:
Investments
Quoted equity shares 157.33 157.33 216.68 216.68
Unquoted equity shares 38.46 38.46 38.50 38.50
Financial assets measured at Fair value through profit and
loss:
Investment in mutual funds 3.00 3.00 131.00 131.00
Financial assets at amortised cost for which Fair value are
disclosed
Government and Trust Securities 5.82 5.82 8.01 8.01
Other financial Assets
Security Deposit 8.08 8.08 7.94 7.94
Interest Receivable 10.45 10.45 5.42 5.42
Unbilled Revenue 3.3 337 3.27 3.27
Finance Lease 1.48 1.48 0.48 0.48
Bank deposit more than 12 months 10.09 10.09 48.49 48.49
Others 2.59 2.59 574 574
Trade Receivables 156.44 156.44 216.80 216.80
Cash and Cash Equivalents 48.51 4851 34.82 34.82
Other Bank Balances 102.62 102.62 30.99 30.99
Total 548.24 548.24 748.14 748.14
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CENTURY TEXTILES AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

31 March 2023

(% in Crores)

31 March 2022

Particulars Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value
value value

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortised cost for which Fair value

are disclosed

Floating rate borrowings (including current maturities and

Interest accrued) 388.76 388.76 352.74 352.74

Fixed rate borrowings (including current maturities and

Interest accrued) 655.91 633.32 962.82 984.32

Lease liabilities (current and non current) 21.60 21.60 20.76 20.76

Trade payables 785.51 785.51 857.96 857.96

Other financial liabilities
Deposits from dealers and agents 73.69 73.69 53.11 53.11
Deposits against rental arrangements 176.23 168.58 163.86 164.15
Earnest money on booking of residential inventory 0.55 0.55 1.69 1.69
Other interest accrued 3.84 3.84 9.63 9.63
Unclaimed / Unpaid dividends 1.67 1.67 1.83 1.83
Creditors for capital supplies/services 20.82 20.82 14.58 14.58
Other liabilities 9.36 9.36 2.57 3.77

Total 2137.94 2107.70 2441.55 2464.54

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, cash credit and all other
current financial assets and liabilities approximates their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these

instruments.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions

were used to estimate the fair values:

(i)  Receivables are evaluated by the Group based on parameters such as interest rates and individual credit worthiness of the
customer. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken into account for the expected credit losses of these receivables.

(i) The fair value of loans from banks and other financial liabilities, security deposit, as well as other financial liabilities
is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and

remaining maturities.

(iii) The fair values of the unquoted equity instruments have been estimated using a net adjusted fair value method. The
valuation requires management to make certain assumptions about the assets, liabilities, investments of Investee Group.
The probabilities of the various assumptions can be reasonably assessed and are used in management's estimate of fair
value for these unquoted equity investments based on the best information available to the Group.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)
(iv) The fair values of quoted equity instruments are derived from quoted market prices in active markets.

(v)  The Group enters into foreign exchange forward contracts are valued using valuation techniques, which employs the use
of market observable inputs.

(vi) The fair value of floating rate borrowings are determined by using discounted cash flow method using discount rate that
reflects the issuer's borrowing rate at the end of the reporting period. As the Group's interest rates changes with the
change in market interest rate, there is no material difference in carrying value and fair value. The own non performance
risk as at 31 March 2023 was assessed to be insignificant.

Fair value measurement hierarchy of financial assets and financial liabilities

(% in Crores)

Fair value hierarchy as at 31 March 2023
Particulars

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets

Financial assets measured at Fair value through

ocClI:
Investments
Quoted equity shares 157.33 - - 157.33
Unquoted equity shares = = 38.46 38.46
Financial assets measured at Fair value through
profit and loss:
Investment in mutual funds 3.00 = = 3.00

Financial assets at amortised cost for which Fair
value are disclosed

Government and Trust Securities - 5.82 - 5.82

Other financial Assets

Security Deposit - 8.08 - 8.08
Interest Receivable = 10.45 = 10.45
Unbilled Revenue = 3.3 = 3.3
Finance Lease = = 1.48 1.48
Bank deposit more than 12 months = 10.09 = 10.09
Others = 2.59 = 2.59
Trade Receivables = 156.44 = 156.44
Cash and Cash Equivalents = 48.51 = 4851
Other Bank Balances = 102.62 = 102.62
Total 160.33 349.45 38.46 548.24
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

® in Crores)

Particulars

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortised cost for which
Fair value are disclosed

Floating rate borrowings (including current

maturities and Interest accrued) = 388.76 = 388.76
Fixed rate borrowings (including current maturities
and Interest accrued) = 633.32 = 633.32
Lease liabilities (current and non current) = 21.60 = 21.60
Trade payables = 785.51 = 785.51
Other financial liabilities
Deposits from dealers and agents - 73.69 - 73.69
Deposits against rental arrangements - 168.58 - 168.58
Earnest money on booking of residential
inventory = 0.55 = 0.55
Other interest accrued = 3.84 = 3.84
Unclaimed / Unpaid dividends = 1.67 = 1.67
Creditors for capital supplies/services = 20.82 = 20.82
Other liabilities = 9.36 = 9.36
Total - 2107.70 - 2107.70

Fair value measurement hierarchy of financial assets and financial liabilities

( in Crores)
Fair value hierarchy as at 31 March 2022

Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Financial assets measured at Fair value through
ocClI:
Investments
Quoted equity shares 216.68 - - 216.68
Unquoted equity shares - - 38.50 38.50
Financial assets measured at Fair value through
profit and loss:
Investment in mutual funds 131.00 - - 131.00
Financial assets at amortised cost for which Fair
value are disclosed
Government and Trust Securities - 8.01 - 8.01
Other financial Assets
Security Deposit - 7.94 - 7.94
Interest Receivable - 5.42 - 5.42
Unbilled Revenue - 3.27 - 3.27
Finance Lease - 0.48 - 0.48
Bank deposit more than 12 months - 48.49 - 48.49
Others - 5.74 - 574
Trade Receivables - 216.80 - 216.80
Cash and Cash Equivalents - 34.82 - 34.82
Other Bank Balances - 30.99 - 30.99
Total 347.68 361.96 38.50 748.14
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

(% in Crores)

Fair value hierarchy as at 31 March 2022

Particulars
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost for which
Fair value are disclosed
Floating rate borrowings (including current
maturities and Interest accrued) - 352.74 - 352.74
Fixed rate borrowings (including current maturities
and Interest accrued) - 984.32 - 984.32
Lease liabilities (current and non current) - 20.76 - 20.76
Trade payables - 857.96 - 857.96
Other financial liabilities
Deposits from dealers and agents - 53.11 - 53.11
Deposits against rental arrangements - 164.15 - 164.15
Earnest money on booking of residential
inventory - 1.69 - 1.69
Other interest accrued - 9.63 - 9.63
Unclaimed / Unpaid dividends - 1.83 - 1.83
Creditors for capital supplies/services - 14.58 - 14.58
Other liabilities - 3.77 - 3.77
Total - 2464.54 - 2464.54
Fair Valuation Techniques and Inputs used - recurring Items
(® in Crores)
Financial Fair value as at Fair value Valuation Significant Relationship of
assets/ 31 March 2022 hierarchy technique(s) unobservable unobservable inputs to fair
financial and key input(s) value and sensitivity
liabilities input(s)
measured at
Fair value
Financial assets Level 3 Replacement Investment 5% (31 March 2022: 5%)
Investments Cost Method property held increase (decrease) in the
Unquoted Equity 38.46 38.50 by investee fair value of investment
. companies property would result in
Investments : . .
. increase (decrease) in fair
assets

investment by ¥ 1.34 Crore
(31 March 20223 1.37
Crore)

There were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 for recurring fair value measurements during the year. For transfers in and

out of level 3 measurements, refer example below.

There were no significant inter-relationships between unobservable inputs that materially affects fair values.

Reconciliation of fair value measurement of unquoted equity shares classified as FVTOCI assets:

(% in Crores)

Particulars 31 March 2022
Opening 38.50 35.87
Re-measurement recognised in OCI (0.04) 2.63
Closing 38.46 38.50
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CENTURY TEXTILES AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

DISCLOSURE UNDER IND AS 116 “ LEASES *“:

Lessee:

The Group has lease contracts for lands & buildings used in its operations. Leases of land and building generally have lease
terms between 3 and 99 years. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets.

(% in Crores)

Amount recognized in statement of profit or loss

March 31 2022

IR EREETRENG N For the year ended
March 31 2023

Depreciation of right-of-use assets 3.67 3.74
Interest on lease liabilities (including interest on reclassified prepayments) 1.88 1.88
Expenses related to short term leases 2.03 1.42
Total 7.48 7.04

The following table sets out the maturity analysis of lease liability to be paid after the reporting date:

(% in Crores)

Particulars March 31 2022
Less than 1 year 3.22 3.18
1-3 years 4.01 3.99
3-b5 years 3.79 3.79
5 years and above 52.10 52.74
Total as at 31 March 63.12 63.70

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under interest-bearing loans and borrowings) and the

movements during the period:

(% in Crores)

Particulars March 31 2022
As at 1 April 20.76 23.31
Additions 2.99 -
Accretion of interest 1.88 1.88
Payments 4.03 4.43
As at 31 March 21.60 20.76
Current 2.26 2.30
Non-current 19.34 18.46
(% in Crores)

Amount recognized in statement of cash flows For the year ended
March 31 2023 March 31 2022

Total cash outflow of leases 4.06 4.43
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

DISCLOSURE UNDER IND AS 116 “ LEASES “: (Continued)

Lessor - Operating Lease:

The Group has significant leasing arrangements in respect of operating leases for premises. These are non cancellable leases
with a lock in period of minimum three years. Most of the leases are renewable for a further period on mutually agreeable
terms and also include escalation clauses on renewal. The Group has entered into operating leases for its Investment property.
These typically have lease terms of between 1 to 4 years. The Group has recognized an amount of ¥ 124.73 Crore (31 March

2022 % 126.45 Crore) as rental income for operating lease during the year ended March 31, 2023

Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are, as follows:

(% in Crores)

Particulars March 31 2022
Less than a year 39.88 54.45
One to two years 11.92 33.70
Two to three years 6.16 7.23
Three to four years 3.69 217
Four to five years 2.37 -
Total (A) 64.02 97.55
More than five years (B) 4.41 -
Total (A +B) 68.43 97.55

Lessor - Finance Lease:

The Group has entered into Finance leases arrangement for leasehold improvement in investment property. These leases have

terms of between three and five years

Amount receivable under Finance Lease:

(% in Crores)

March 31 2022

Particulars March 31 2023

Less than a year 0.49
One to two years 0.55 -
Two to three years 1.36 .
Total 1.91 0.49
Unearned Finance Income (0.43) (0.01)
Present value of minimum lease payment receivable 1.48 0.48
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CENTURY TEXTILES AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

RATIO ANALYSIS AND ITS ELEMENTS

Reason
Ratio Numerator Denominator 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 % change for
variance
Current ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 1.16 1.07 8.41%
Debt- Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholder's Equit Refer
quity et auy 0.26 0.34 -23.53%
Note (a)
Debt Service Earnings for debt service =  Debt service = Interest Refer
Coverage ratio Net profit after taxes + Non- & Lease Payments + 0.74 225  -6711% Note (b)
cash operating expenses Principal Repayments
Return on Equity ratio Net Profits after taxes Average Shareholder's Refer
B quityrat ! X verag 0.07 004  75.00%
Equity Note (a)
Inventory Turnover  Cost of goods sold Average Inventor
enor K K y 3.99 435  -8.28%
ratio
Trade Receivabl Net sales = Gross sales - Average Trad Refer
e ece|vl e et sales ss sale ve -ge rade 26.99 166 1676% (&€
Turnover Ratio sales return Receivable Note (a)
Trade Payable Net purchases = Gross Average Trade
Turnover Ratio purchases + other Payables 592 542 9.23%
expenses - purchase return
Net Capital Turnover Net sales = Total sales - Working capital =
Ratio sales return Current assets —
Current liabilities 478 5.03 -4.97%
(Excluding current
borrowings)
Net Profit rati Net Profit Net sales = Total sal Ref
et Profit ratio et Profi et sales = Total sales 5 51% 391% 40929 Ceer
- sales return Note (a)
Net Profit ratio before Net Profit before Net sales = Total sales
exceptional items exceptional items (net of - sales return 3.25% 391% -16.88%
tax expense)
Return on Capital Earnings before interest Capital employed =
Employed and taxes Tangible Net worth + Refer
0.08 0.06  33.33%
Total debt + Deferred ° Note (a)
tax liability
Return on Investment Interest (Finance Income)  Investment 3.46% 3.07% 12.70%
Notes :

(a) During the year, the Company has recorded exceptional gain on account of transfer of leasehold land of ¥ 134.21 crores.
Accordingly, all ratios related to cash flows, revenue and profitability of the Company has been improved as compared to
previous year.

(b) Mainly on account of redemption of Non Convertible debentures of ¥ 400.00 crores during the year
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

(0)

(vii)

48.

The Group does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for
holding any Benami property.

The Group does not have any transactions with companies struck off.
The Group does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the

understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The Group does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered

or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey
or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

The Company has defined process to take daily back-up of books of account maintained electronically and maintain the
logs of the back-up of such books of account however in few cases daily back-up was failed because of technical issue
and manual back-up has been taken on the next day. Management has taken adequate steps to configure systems to
ensure that back up for books of account is taken on daily basis even in case of technical failure.

INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURE

Birla Advanced Knits Private Limited (BAKPL) incorporated on 14 July 2021. The Group has a 50% interest in BAKPL, a joint
venture involved in the manufacturing, marketing, supplying, selling & distribution of the MMCF knit product. The Group's
interest in BAKPL is accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements. Summarised financial
information of the joint venture, based on its Ind AS financial statements, and reconciliation with the carrying amount of the
investment in consolidated financial statements are set out below:

Summarised balance sheet

(% in Crores)

Particulars March 31 2022
Current assets, including cash and cash equivalents ¥ 0.79 Crore (31 March 2022 10.83 0.69
% 0.28 crores)

Non-current assets 195.10 29.16
Non-current liabilities (146.61) -
Current liabilities (13.00) 0.17)
Equity 46.32 29.74
Group's share in equity- 50% 23.16 14.87
Group's carrying amount of the investment 23.16 14.87
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURE (Continued)
Summarised statement of profit and loss

(% in Crores)

IR RETAENG N For the year ended

Particulars YREIRPIYE]  March 312022

Revenue from contracts with customers

Other Income 0.13 0.26
Employee benefits expense (1.44) (0.06)
Finance costs (0.32) -
Other expense (1.96) (0.47)
Loss before tax (3.59) (0.27)
Income tax expense 0.10 -
Loss for the year (3.69) (0.27)
Total comprehensive loss for the year (3.69) (0.27)
Group's share of loss for the year (1.84) (0.13)

The joint venture had no other contingent liabilities or capital commitments as at 31 March 2023.

SUMMARISED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF MATERIAL NON CONTROLLING INTERESTS
Financial Information of Subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interest is provided below:

Proportion of equity interest held by non-controlling interests:

(% in Crores)

Name Name Country of March 31 2023 March 31 2022
Incorporation

Avarna Projects LLP India 50% 50%

Birla Tisya LLP India 60% 60%

(a) AvarnaProjects LLP

(i) Summarised Balance Sheet:

(% in Crores)

Particulars March 31 2022
Non-current Assets 7.43 2.98
Current Assets 807.15 583.51
Non-current Liabilities (492.92) (437.40)
Current Liabilities (350.86) (168.75)
(29.20) (19.66)
Attributable to:
Equity holders of parent (14.60) (9.83)
Non-controlling interest (14.60) (9.83)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

SUMMARISED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF MATERIAL NON CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

(ii) Summarised Statement of Profit and Loss:

(% in Crores)

IR RTETAENG N For the year ended

Particulars March 31 2022
Other income 0.28 0.23
Employee benefits expense (2.14) (2.38)
Depreciation and amortisation expense (0.59) (0.67)
Other expenses (7.09) (1.06)
Loss before tax (9.54) (3.82)
Tax Expenses = -
Loss for the year (9.54) (3.82)
Other Comprehensive Income/(Expense) for the year - -
Total Comprehensive Loss for the year (9.54) (3.82)
Attributable to:

Equity holders of parent (1.97)
Non-controlling interest (1.97)

(iii) Summarised Cash Flow information:

(% in Crores)

Particulars

IR RTETEENG N For the year ended
March 31 2023 March 31 2022

= =
Sl i
RN
~N
SO

Operating Activities (26.86) (52.76)
Investing Activities (23.81) (10.20)
Financing Activities 53,18 29.21
Net (Decrease) / Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 2.46 (33.75)

(b) BirlaTisyaLLP

(i) Summarised Balance Sheet:

(% in Crores)

Particulars March 31 2022
Non-current Assets 51.47 54.78
Current Assets 135.61 53.06
Non-current Liabilities (65.88) (71.31)
Current Liabilities (130.12) (41.32)
(8.91) (4.80)
Attributable to:
Equity holders of parent (3.57) (1.92)
Non-controlling interest (5.35) (2.88)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

SUMMARISED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF MATERIAL NON CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)
(ii) Summarised Statement of Profit and Loss:

(% in Crores)

Particulars For the year ended
March 31 2023 March 31 2022
Other income 0.06 -
Employee benefits expense (1.56) (0.88)
Depreciation and amortisation expense (0.84) (0.02)
Other expenses (a.77) (3.97)
Loss before tax (4.11) (4.86)
Tax Expenses = -
Loss for the year (4.11) (4.86)
Other Comprehensive Income/(Expense) for the year - -
Total Comprehensive Loss for the year (4.11) (4.86)
Attributable to:
Equity holders of parent (1.95)

Non-controlling interest (2.92)

(iii) Summarised Cash Flow information:

(% in Crores)

IR RTETEENG N For the year ended

— =
N —
~ o
~N O
N RO

Particulars YO EIRIZE]  March 31 2022
Operating Activities 13.45 12.52
Investing Activities 0.30 (4.38)
Financing Activities (9.39) (7.76)
Net (Decrease) / Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 4.36 0.38
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CENTURY TEXTILES AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED

FIVE YEAR HIGHLIGHTS

(% in Crores)

CONSOLIDATED

PARTICULARS 2022-23| 2021-22| 2020-21 2019-20  2018-19
(Restated)

INCOME

Sales (Net of Rebates & Returns) & rent from leased

properties 4719.32 4068.36 2567.36 3331.40 3633.26

Other Income (Including Operating Income) 107.85 105.65 110.83 127.23 420.08

4827.17 4174.01 2678.19 3458.63 4053.34

EXPENDITURE

Material & Overheads (+ /- Stock Adj].) 4272.32 3686.44 2392.87 2858.57 2992.41

EARNING BEFORE TAX, DEPRECIATION AND
AMORTIZATION FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

(EBITDA) 554.85 487.57 285.32 600.06 1060.93
Less : Finance Cost 53.89 52.18 70.70 87.09 101.65
PROFIT BEFORE DEPRECIATION AND TAX 500.96 435.39 214.62 512.97 959.38
Less : Depreciation 227.08 230.66 231.13 228.58 193.00
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUED

OPERATIONS 273.88 204.73 (16.51) 284.39 766.38
Share of Profit / (Loss) of Joint Venture (1.84) (0.13) - - -
PROFIT BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS AND TAX 272.04 204.60 (16.51) 284.39 766.38
Exceptional Items 134.21 - - - -
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 406.25 204.60 (16.51) 284.39 766.38
Less : Tax (Net) - including deferred tax from continuing

OPERATIONS 141.70 50.44 (1.44) (93.69) 266.91
NET PROFIT / (LOSS) 264.55 154.16 (15.07) 378.08 499.47
PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM DISCONTINUING OPERATIONS - 10.59 (28.50) (27.13) 5546.90
Less : Tax (Net) - including deferred tax from discontinued

operations - (3.05) 9.96 9.48 16.79
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX FROM DISCONTINUING

OPERATIONS - 7.54 (18.54) (17.65) 5563.69
Net Profit 264.55 161.70 (33.61) 360.43 6063.16
DIVIDEND (%) 50.00 40.00 10.00 30.00 75.00
CASH PROFIT AFTER TAX 681.47 450.07 266.37 383.84 734.82
BOOK VALUE PER SHARE 361.59 347.08 326.53 323.33 294.97
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STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES FOR FIVE YEARS

®in Crores)

CONSOLIDATED
PARTICULARS 2022-23 2021-22 2020-21 2019-20 2018-19
(Restated)
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, plant & equipment (including Investment
Property & CWIP) 4165.18 4284.29 4349.50 4469.40 470497
(b) Financial Assets 3384 439.51 307.00 422.80 318.16
(c) Other Non current assets 21.58 25.65 38.59 51.29 40.83
Sub-Total - Non Current Assets 4525.16 4749.45 4695.09 4943.49 5063.96
Current assets
(@) Inventories 3256.10 2330.86 1508.29 1337.68 699.00
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 3.00 131.00 45.00
(i) Trade Receivables 156.44 216.80 157.85 181.24 203.86
(iii)y Cash & Cash Equivalent 151.13 65.81 126.19 120.23 61.89
(iv) Other Financial Assets 16.09 13.18 19.80 2813 26.04
(c) Other Current assets 343.72 231.74 139.29 135.39 117.83
Sub-Total - Current Assets 3926.48 2989.39 1996.42 1802.67 1108.62
Assets classified as held for Sale - - 1.96 1.33 223
TOTAL ASSETS 8451.64 7738.84 6693.47 6747.49 6174.81
EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 111.69 111.69 111.69 111.69 111.69
(b) Other Equity 3775.14 3607.13 3392.67 3367.80 318240
(c) Non Controlling Interest 152.12 158.03 143.03 132.09
Sub-Total - Equity 4038.95 3876.85 3647.39 3611.58 3294.09
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liability
(i) Borrowings 399.09 381.82 864.97 549.92 701.58
(i) Lease Liabilities 19.34 18.46 20.62 15.44 12.20
(i) Other Financial Liabilities 117.82 98.19 97.13 87.15 91.83
(b) Provisions 2.48 1.50 0.75 074 0.35
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities 40.64 - - - 93.99
(d) Other Non-current Liabilities 454.50 520.21 571.51 601.18 686.72
Sub-Total - Non-Current Liabilities 1033.87 1020.18 1554.98 1254.43 1586.67
Current Liabilities
(@) Financial Liability
(i) Borrowings 638.62 933.74 160.23 33.84 200.44
(i) Lease Liabilities 2.26 2.30 2.69 1.95 -
(i) Trade Payables 785.51 857.96 620.52 492.61 519.35
(iv) Other Financial Liabilities 175.31 149.08 136.52 944.16 260.17
(b) Provisions 182.46 181.87 189.68 181.94 175.81
(c) Other Current Liabilities 1594.66 716.86 333.69 181.65 95.33
Sub-Total - Current Liabilities 3378.82 2841.81 1443.33 1836.15 1251.10
Liabilities directly associated with assets held for sale - - 4777 4533 4295
TOTAL - EQUITY & LIABILITIES 8451.64 7738.84 6693.47 6747.49 6174.81
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